City of Kingsville, Texas

AGENDA

CITY COMMISSION

MONDAY, JUNE 24, 2024
REGULAR MEETING
CITY HALL
HELEN KLEBERG GROVES COMMUNITY ROOM
400 WEST KING AVENUE
Live Videostream: https://www.facebook.com/cityofkingsvilletx

l. Preliminary Proceedings.

OPEN MEETING APPROYED '
INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — (Mayor Fugate) /MW
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) Vo

Mark McLaughlin

City Manager

None.
II. Public Hearing - (Required by Law).’
1. None. '

lll. Reports from Commission & Staff.?

“At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful, and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reports include the following: Building & Development , Code Enforcement,

Proposed Development Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial Services - Information,

Investment Report, Quarterly Budget Report, Monthly Financial Reports; Police & Fire
Department — Grant Update, Police & Fire Reports; Street Updates; Public Works-

Building Maintenance, Construction Updates; Park Services - grant(s) update,

miscellaneous park projects, Administration -Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements,

Public Information, Hotel Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, Proclamations, Health Plan

Update, Tax Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,

Financial Advisor, Water And Wastewater Rate Study Presentation. No formal action can

be taken on these items at this time.”

IV. Public Comment on Agenda ltems.?
1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.
V. Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
Page1of3

AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
June 24, 2024




VI.

discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the item
or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence
after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining
items will be adopted by one vofte.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions, and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance of the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas, pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code, creating Tax Increment
Financing Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Kingsville, Texas. (Economic
Development Director).

2. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Budget to appropriate funding for the Reimbursement Agreement for Preliminary
Engineering Services with Union Pacific Railroad Company for the Escondido Rail
Crossing Project. (City Manager).

REGULAR AGENDA
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

3. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the City of Kingsville Code of
Ordinances Chapter VI, Article 5-Traffic Schedules, Schedule | (D), revising the speed limit
on certain areas of General Cavazos Boulevard. (FM1356); providing for appropriate
penalties fines, and fees regarding the regulation thereof; repealing all ordinances in
conflict wherewith and providing for an effective date and publication. (City Engineer).

4. Consider a resolution of the City of Kingsville, Texas in support of the submission to
the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation’s National Coastal Resilience Fund Award titled
“Developing Nature-Based Designs To Increase Resilience And Habitat In The Baffin Bay
Watershed (TX)". (Parks Director).

5. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget to
provide additional funding for Parks vehicle and equipment maintenance. (Parks Director).

6. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget to
adjust budgets based on audited beginning fund balances for FY23-24. (Finance Director).

7. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget to
provide funding for the payback of the HRSA Cares Provider Relief Fund due to non-
submittal of reports. (Finance Department).

8. Consider a resolution of the City Commission of Kingsville, Texas, authorizing the
submission of a Resilient Communities Program (RCP) grant application to the Texas
General Land Office for funding for a Comprehensive Plan (land use) and authorizing the
Mayor and City Manager to act as the City's Executive Officers and Authorized
Representatives in all matters pertaining to the City's participation in the RCP Grant.
(Director of Planning and Development Services).

9. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the City of Kingsville Code of
Ordinances Sections 15-3-51 and 9-10-1 through 9-10-5, providing for revisions to the
sidewalk regulations, repealing all ordinances in conflict herewith and providing for an
effective date and publication. (Director of Planning and Development Services).

Page 2 of 3
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
June 24, 2024




10. Executive Session: Pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government Code,
Deliberations regarding Real Property Exception, the City Commission shall convene in
Executive Session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property as
deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the
governmental body in negotiations with a third party. (City Manager).

11. Consider a resolution authorizing staff to proceed with placing for sale the City’s 3.030
acres of land located on the north side of the 400 Block of East Caesar Ave. (9", Block 24,
Lot ALL, S/2 closed Ragland St.), also known as Old Hospital site, in Kingsville, Texas.
(Purchasing Manager).

12. Workshop: discussion on proposed FY24-25 Employee Compensation Plan and
related items. (Human Resources Director).

VII. Adjournment.

- No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes. Cannot be extended by Commission.

2 No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes without permission of majority of Commission.

3 Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. May be extended or permitted at other times in the
meeting only with 5 affirmative Commission votes. The speaker must identify himself by name and
address.

4 ltems being considered by the Commission for action except citizen’s comments to the Mayor and
Commission, no comment at this point without 5 affirmative votes of the Commission.

NOTICE

This City of Kingsville and Commission Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible
parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must
be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's office at
361/595-8002 or FAX 361/595-8024 or E-Mail mvalenzuela@cityofkingsville.com for further
information. Braille Is Not Available. The City Commission reserves the right to adjourn
into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of
the matters listed above, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, Section 551-071
(Consultation with Attorney), 551-072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551-073
Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551-074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076
(Deliberations about Security Devices), 551-086 (Certain Public Power Utilities:
Competitive Matters), and 551-087 (Economic Development) .

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that the Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin
board at City Hall, City of Kingsville, 400 West King Avenue, Kingsville, Texas, a place convenient
and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted on the
following date and time:

June 20, 2024, at 4:30 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding
the scheduled time of said meeting.

V‘(\(\M\IQLU\S\A&Q
Mary Valénzuela, TRMC, City Secretary
City of Kingsville, Texas

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Kingsville City Hall on the
following date and time:

By:
City Secretary’s Office
City of Kingsville, Texas

Page 3 of3
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
June 24, 2024




CONSENT AGENDA




AGENDA ITEM #1




. wpwdojarag sjuouody MR
L LILL3d aINve- W

vozoranr
XL‘onsSunijo k-

Z# 9UOZ JUBWIISIAU 19y
juswa.tdu| xe] pasodoid



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

suopsen) =
| 5d015 IXON =
C# SUOZ JUsuilsaAulay Juswalou| xe| pasodold =

1daou0)) mc_ucmc_n__pc.@E@Luc_,.me .

350ddNd



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

mmk_m Umﬁmcw_mmv e 0} >@mc®

pue E@Emuﬁ_uxm Sulg Ucm JUSUWIISIAU 93E1|10B) Emc_go_@in

- M3aU 1oeJdjie ||IM 31 0S auoz e c_. mEmEm>9@_E_ 104 Aed 8 |00}

SIU} @SN Ued ‘syun Buixp 42430 Ym diyssauziod up 1o mco_m “mm_ﬂzu
SEX?| 10 31e1S ay3 Ul _ompm@b Usa(q m>m; me__H u_o m_cm%c:I

TT€ Je1deyd 'spoD xe | Aq pauIaA0D

(Z¥|1) 2UOZ JUSWISSAUIDY JUBWISJOU| XB| B UIYIIM E_@Eo_o._méc.

DIUWIOU0D2 $3ZIAIIUSDUI 383 |00] B S| (4]]) Suldueul EmE@bc_.me

 ONIDNVNIH INIWFHINI XL



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

1B,

L .Acm,m> aseq)
pajeudiseq auoz

paleuwIa] aU07

Am..mwt E._w._. Nu:._.

| \ﬁ:cm wc_xmp mE 8 m>>©_u_ _
m:_m> \Atwaoa _mm_ me\ﬁ mmmp mE co xm

($) anjep f1adoad ajqexel

| Z | L Uiyim
JuswdojaAsp Mmau W) _omuﬁml_mcwm Xe} JO U0|140d B S1021]pay - ©

JUSWAO[SASP UO XE] M3U B JON

_UZ_UZ<Z_H_ ._.Zm__\/_m_w_uz_ XV1



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

| Aeu Jeyl eale oju| Emcbmoé_ pue m\_@ao_mit _m;chQ S10B.11Y

2U0zZ- m£ mc;_u@cmo_ ﬂuwﬂok_a Lwﬁo -

Aomm L_@Emguv mESmoE E@qu_miv OIWOU0DD w
- o ﬂcmemﬁzag_ olIqnd w |
~feJnonisesul w
210y Aed ueo ZYIL Y

LDUUO @m_>>\_®_(_uﬁ0 uﬁOC

EmEmb:Cwm\_m_ e Bm‘_mcmm 8 _Nm;
9U} Uly3im Ajiadoud sjgexel W0} senuaAal 28eiaAd] 01 AlljIQY

Aypus Suixe} BuiedidiEd oS J0) SONUSASI puny [BJoUSS JO
JUNOWe Jua.44nd ay3 Sulldedul] JnNOYHM 324n0S Sulpuny B SapIA0.(

eale UEmcw_w@U
e Uly}Mm Jnd20 01 pardadxa AllAIlDe Juswdolanap a3eAlld

(ZAILV ILYIAD AHM



mucmc_ﬁ:o Emk_mo_mm >o_ __ucsou B_U m£ Um>ol_ga< (¢ -
| | pue _Emom 7L 9U1 Ag papuswiwiodal

-

_,  m_ cm_n_ wc_ucmc__n_. _ocm Bmﬂo#_ jeut4 ays co;mmb yas | EBERINY Q

DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

cm_a mc_ucmc_u_ @cm E@ﬁo\i [oulo

ueld Supueul pue ub@_o{_n_ \CGSE:SQ G.Ucm

o __co;mg_u_tmn_ AND (& Emom_ 7L (§: EEF (7 émcc:om_ Q

ISJUBWIBIR >mv_ m>c Saysi|ge1sa adueuIpIO co_pmgu

Ueld SuUeU pUe 199(01d ZY[L 7
2UBUIPIO UONeas) ]

SJUSWINOOP Ulew om ] “7¥|] e Sulpuswe pue
3ulea.d Joy sainpadodd SnoLleA syl m@c_::o 1TS L@uﬂgmsu

SSID0Ud NOILYIED Z¥IL



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

e

HUBS M

 SaLIepuNOg - Z# ZWlL 0ISOdOYc



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

EmE@@me [220[J497Ul UBm;ow@c aq

. o”_ uﬂm\» e 03 103[gns qu_u_tm@_ 0] \ﬁc:ou 342093 104 [eljusiod =

E@Embc_ EEQEQ
_mE S uﬂ_ JO 906 JO a1el e mpma_u_tma A1 2yl 181 Suisododd =

: (S§S0Z ‘T Jeqwaidas \6 _omﬁm__.ou |
90 0} XB] S JeaA [eul yjim) 7G0¢ ‘T¢ 48qwada( - wJia) JesA-Qg =

¥20C T \Cm:c_mw.u_o Se 2 PINOM anjeA oseq oy =
'saioe ¢¢ Ajprewxoidde u_o S1SISUOT) =

SUOI3D1PSIIN[ SUIXe] ||B 0] 9NUSA3J XE) |euonippe
PISIA ||IM 1Byl JuswdolaAap 21eAlld 98eJN0odUd 03 S| |IEOD) =

MIINIBAQ - Z# Z3lL 03SOdOYd



DAVID PETTIT

ic Development

Econom

wn
Q)
)
—t
Q
o
(D
D]
—
-
-
Q.

1SS

JUswdopAd( paredidiuy

~ ¢i# Zdl1 d350d0dd




DAVID PETTIT

000000
000002 )

- | 000°008°L

000008
000002
CO0'00E"1

0D0'0DEE

Economic Development

oL

000°000°
000°00T 1
000°009°}
000°008

000°D02

000°00€" 4
000°005'F
000'00€°E

oooon
0009
ono'g
000w
005
0ns'o
09
a__u_..msﬁm. b

B OB OB OB O B B2

5
b
5
5
5
5
5
%

}J81s A}D wody 1ndul Ucm gcmc(_go_min pauue(d umouy|
'SpuSJ] 33Jewl Uo paseq ‘7y|] 243 Jo all| a3 3ulINp 4No20
PINOS JusuldolaAap Ajlwei3nw pue |1e1ad 1euy s309foud 34 =

~ JuswdojeAspal pue jusuldojanap
2JNINJ JOJ Pau0I}sod [|]am S| SUOZ 3Y} UIYIIM pue| ay | =

JuawdofaAsQ paredidUY ~ Z# Z3IL d3SOdONd



169'S9L°€E$

- saxe]. _mwc._. |

_ - £85'G29'9€$ jeloL
- EGL°0P9% - e5L°0p9% Auouiny Jsjepp Sexa | ynog
- BEQ'LYBCLS 7 BL9' L8’ m;.. _. asi aliasbupy
. ovLoce'ed . - Obl'oze'ss. Auno) Biagapy
_ ¥95'9GE°0LS 988'65Y'€$ | 0SH'OL8ELS afjiasbury Jo Auo
Em:wm umz =QEMMF_M”~E& . Pjelauag suonapsunp Buixej |

W31 JeaA Og |

9Y] JOAO ‘S1S07) 109 oi mf punj 01 m:cm>mm_ Z1L ul uoyin
G'€$ o1eJouasd 03 psyosfoud s|juswdolara pajedidiuy au| e

DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

LL

9SEQ $¢0¢ € 9A0ge '2U07 9yl Ulylim jusuaioul Ajuadoud |ead
241 JO 9%06G B:g_bcou U_jo>> S|IASSUIY JO AJD) a1 Buisododd - e
JuswdojeAs paleddnuy
94} JO oN[eA S|(EXE] 1,¢0¢ oY) SJUSSaIdal UOIIIN #7'GTS

uonedidived - Z# Z¥1L 43S0dONd




cosEm_o_mcou 10} __uczou B_u Ucm Emog Nm_H mf_
0} Em\éou_ Em:oE _ocm m>ogm p31s1| $9110321ED BU} YHM JU]SISUOD ‘SISeq 9SeD AQ 9sed
eUo _uﬂms_mi mg ___>> mcozmuo__m Pmou 129foud ZdIL _mzb_>6c_ a2yl %ﬁ paiedidnue sl e

W23} dUI| J2YIoUE Ul 3Sea.DU| 350D e 03 pajjdde aq
>mE EB_ mc__ auo Eot ssuines U@m_>mL sle) Aew PUE S3jeW3Sa ale pajessn|l s1so0 oy e

'2poD) xe] mmxﬂ U} JO 20O 118 UoID9S ‘TTE E%gu .
Ecc: @_o__m__m ﬂuwﬁoa |E 3pn|oul 03 JUeswW aJe m>ogm 3|ge1 ay3 ul U@uqm__ mm:omﬂmu oyl

R T o T S T el
%50'€ £GLE0T. g 53505 m:_um._um_c_..:_...d _.
3 :
8

%0€ 996°LE0'T. suelS uswdojana(] auouoay |

syuswianoldu] pue saiIveS 1jgngd ‘sauswaaoidwy |

0T 636'sre pue sapjloed usiesIany puE R ‘Baeds usdp

AaUBjadNa UDLIISPad YT 2oUDYUA JOIT SAFIUSUD JSYIC PUD LD gnd ‘Bunybyy-‘edossiaais|

2 %zt 98T STV $ SIUBLUSOUELUZ UelIsepag
3 %S8T E86'8TS S spuBLEAcIdU] UDNDISISIU] PUR 193135
.m 2%ST £86'8TS & sjuawRacsdw] Jsuel] pue Supded
m SIUBLUBN0IGLY PUD SO I3TOM
o

DAVID PETTIT

LLIOJS ‘SIUDLUBAOIGLLY PUD S31II00S 13Ma5 ADIIUDS ‘SIuSWan0Idily PUD SN0 IS0
%ST €86'3TS S s2IMIn Agng
N T I . Z# 7411 - 5350) walold pescdoly

510D 29[04d - Z# Z4IL 3SOdONUd

4



mucmc_E@ Em\_mgmm \5 __ucsou \ﬁ_u @5 cmf @cm Emom

DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

Pk

zl

Nm_h 943} Aq panoidde s suelq Suipueulq pue 303[04d
- [euld 343 Uopea Nm: coga 20 I[ed/iauuing «

| cm_a mc._ucmc_u_ _@cm ﬁﬂoi émc_e__mi .
pue :o;mg_u_tma AIDm

‘pieog 7| L=
Ek_mwu_u L 3
\Cm_oc:om .

:SIUSWIDID A BAlL m@gm__gﬁm@ 92URUIPJO UOI1ea ) =
UO[3BISPISUOD) pUE SUIpey puZ 7 Sun( =

SoUBUIPIO
uoljeal) SulesH u__nsn_ _ucm mc_vmmw_ sT ‘0T aun( =

Sd41S 1X3IN d35S0d0ud



14

QUESTIONS

=

DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development




CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

ORDINANCE NO. 24-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 311 OF THE TEXAS TAX
CODE, CREATING TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REINVESTMENT ZONE
NUMBER TWO, CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville, Texas (the “City™), pursuant to Chapter 311
of the Texas Tax Code, as amended (the “Act”), may designate a geographic
area within the City as a tax increment reinvestment zone if the area satisfies
the requirements of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Act provides that the governing body of a municipality by
ordinance may designate a contiguous or noncontiguous geographic area that
is in the corporate limits of the municipality or the extraterritorial jurisdiction
(the “ETJ”) of the municipality to be a reinvestment zone if the governing
body determines that development or redevelopment would not occur solely
through private investment in the reasonably foreseeable future; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to promote the development of a
certain contiguous geographic area in the City, which is more specifically
described in Exhibits "A" and “B” of this Ordinance (the "Zone"), through the
creation of a reinvestment zone as authorized by and in accordance with the Tax
Increment Financing Act, codified at Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and as required by the Act, the City has prepared a
Preliminary  Reinvestment Zowne Project Plan and Financing Plan for
Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Kingsville, attached as Exhibit C
(hereinafter referred to as the “Preliminary Project and Finance Plan™) for a
proposed tax increment reinvestment zone containing the real property within the
Zone; and

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing on the creation of the proposed
zone was published in a newspaper having general circulation in the City on
May 30, 2024, which date is before the seventh (7th) day before the public
hearing held on June 10, 2024; and

WHEREAS, at the public hearing on June 10, 2024, interested persons were
allowed to speak for or against the creation of the Zone, the boundaries of the
Zone, and the concept of tax increment financing, and owners of property in
the proposed Zone were given a reasonable opportunity to protest the inclusion
of their property in the Zone; the public hearing was held in full accordance with
Section 311.003(c) of the Act; and




WHEREAS, evidence was received and presented at the public hearing on June
10, 2024, and in favor of the creation of the Zone; and

WHEREAS, after all comments and evidence, both written and oral, were
received by -the City Commission, the public hearing was closed on June 10,
2024; and

WHEREAS, the City has taken all actions required to create the Zone including,
but not limited to, all actions required by the home-rule Charter of the City,
the Act, the Texas Open Meetings Act (defined herein), and all other laws
applicable to the creation of the Zone; and

WHEREAS, the percentage of the property in the proposed zone, excluding
property that is public owned, that is used for residential purposes is less than

thirty percent; and

WHEREAS, a Preliminary Project and Finance plan has been prepared for the
proposed reinvestment zone.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION 1. RECITALS INCORPORATED.

The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby
found and declared to be true and correct.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS.

That the City Commission, after conducting the above described hearing and having
heard the evidence and testimony presented at the hearing, has made the following
findings and determined based on the evidence and testimony presented to it:

" (a) That the public hearing on the creation of the reinvestment zone has been
propetly called, held, and conducted and that notice of such hearing has been
published as required by law; and

(b) That the creation of the proposed reinvestment zone with boundaries as described
and depicted in Exhibits “A” and “B” will result in benefits to the City, its residents
and property owners, in general, and to the property, residents, and property owners
in the reinvestment zone; and

(c) That the proposed reinvestment zone, as defined in Exhibits “A” and “B”, meets
the criteria for the creation of a reinvestment zone set forth in the Act in that:

1. It is a geographic area located within the City limits of the City; and

2




2. That the City Commission further finds and declares that the proposed zone
meets the criteria and requirements of Section 311.005 of the Texas Tax Code
because the proposed zone is predominantly open and, because of obsolete platting,
deterioration of structures or site improvements, or other factors substantially
impair or arrest the sound growth of the City or county.

(d) That 30 percent or less of the property in the proposed reinvestment zone,
excluding property dedicated to public use, is currently used for residential

purposes; and

(e) That the total appraised value of all taxable real property in the proposed
reinvestment zone according to the most recent appraisal rolls of the City, together
with the total appraised value of taxable real property in all other existing
reinvestment zones within the City, according to the most recent appraisal rolls
of the City, does not exceed 50 percent of the current total appraised value of
taxable real property in the City and in the industrial dlstncts created by the City,

if any; and

(f) That the improvements in the proposed reinvestment zone will significantly
enhance the value of all taxable real property in the proposed reinvestment zone
and will be of general benefit to the City or county; and

(g) That the development or redevelopment of the property in the proposed
reinvestment zone will not occur solely through private investment in the

reasonable foreseeable future.
SECTION 3. DESIGNATION AND NAME OF THE ZONE.,

Pursuant to the authority of, and in accordance with the requirements of the Act, the
City Commission hereby designates the area described and depicted in Exhibits “A”
and “B” hereto as a tax increment reinvestment zone. The name assigned to the zone
for identification is Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Kingsville, Texas
(hereinafter referred to as the “Zone”).

SECTION 4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

That a board of directors for the Zone (“Board”) is hereby created. The Board shall
consist of five (5) members comprised of four (4) City Commission members and the

Mayor.

The Mayor shall serve as chairman of the Board and the Board may elect a vice
chairman and such other officers as the Board sees fit. Additionally, each taxing unit
that levies taxes within the Zone and chooses to contribute all or part of the tax
increment produced by the unit into the tax increment fund may appoint one member
of the board. The number of directors on the Board of Directors shall be increased by
one for each taxing unit that appoints a director to the board; provided, that the
maximum number of directors shall not exceed fifteen (15).

3




The Board shall make recommendations to the City Commission concerning the
administration, management, and operation of the Zone. The Board shall prepare and
adopt a project plan and a reinvestment zone financing plan for the Zone and submit
such plans to the City Commission for its approval. The Board shall perform all duties
imposed upon it by Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code and all other applicable laws.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Board shall not be authorized to
(1) issues bonds; (ii) impose taxes or fees; (iii) exercise the power of eminent domain,
or (iv) give final approval to the Zone’s project plan and financing plan.

SECTION 3. DURATION OF THE ZONE.

That the Zone shall take effect immediately upon the passage and approval of this
Ordinance, consistent with Section 311.004(a)(3) of the Act, and termination of the
Zone shall occur upon any of the following: (i) on December 31, 2054 (with the
final year’s tax increment to be collected by September 1, 2055); (ii) at an earlier time
designated by subsequent ordinance; (iii) at such time, subsequent to the issuance of
tax increment bonds, if any, that all project costs, tax increment bonds, notes and
other obligations of the Zone, and the interest thereon, have been paid in full, in
accordance with Section 311.017 of the Act.

SECTION 4. TAX INCREMENT BASE AND TAX INCREMENT.

That the tax increment base for the Zone, as defined by Section 311.012(c) of the Texas
Tax Code, shall be the total appraised value of all real property in the Zone taxable by
a taxing unit, determined as of January 1, 2024, which is the year in which the Zone was
designated as a reinvestment zone.

The TIF Fund shall consist of (i) the percentage of the tax increment, as defined by
Section 311.012(a) of the Texas Tax Code, that each taxing unit which levies real
property taxes in the Zone, other than the City, has elected to dedicate to the TIF Fund
under an agreement with the City authorized by Section 311.013(f) of the Texas Tax
Code, (ii) fifty percent (50%) of the City’s tax increment, as defined by section
311.012(a) of the Texas Tax Code, subject to any binding agreement executed at any
time by the City that pledges a portion of such tax increment or an amount of other
legally available funds whose calculation is based on receipt of any portion of such tax

increment.

SECTION 5. TAX INCREMENT FUND.

That there is hereby created and established a “Tax Increment Fund” for the Zone
which may be divided into such subaccounts as may be authorized by subsequent
ordinance, into which all tax increments of the City, as such increments are
described in the final project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan and may
include administration costs, less any of the amounts not required to be paid into the
Tax Increment Fund pursuant to the Act, are to be deposited. The Tax Increment Fund
and any subaccounts are to be maintained in an account at the affiliated depository
4




bank of the City and shall be secured in the manner prescribed by law for funds of
Texas cities. In addition, all revenues from (i) the sale of any obligations hereafter
issued by the City and secured in whole or in part from the tax increments; (ii) the sale
of any property acquired as part of a tax increment financing plan adopted by the Board;
and (iii) other revenues dedicated to and used in the Zone shall be deposited into the
TIF Fund. Prior to the termination of the Zone, money shall be disbursed from the Tax
Increment Fund only to pay project costs, as defined by the Texas Tax Code, for the
Zone, to satisfy the claims of holders of tax increments bonds or notes issued for the
Zone, or to pay obligations incurred pursuant to agreements entered into to implement
the project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan and achieve their purpose
pursuant to Section 311.010(b), Texas Tax Code.

SECTION 6. - SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.

Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be
declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is
expressly provided that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall
remain in full force and effect. The City hereby declares that it would have passed
this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof irrespective
of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and
phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid.

SECTION 7. OPEN MEETINGS.

It is hereby found, determined, and declared that sufficient written notice of the date,
hour, place and subject of the meeting of the City Commission at which this Ordinance
was adopted was posted at a place convenient and readily accessible at all times to the
general public at the City Hall of the City for the time required by law preceding its
meeting, as required by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, and that this
meeting has been open to the public as required by law at all times during which this
Ordinance and the subject matter hereof has been discussed, considered and formally
acted upon. The City Commission further ratifies, approves and confirms such written
notice and the contents and posting thereof.




SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adopﬁon and publication in
accordance with and as provided by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 10™ day of June, 2024.

- PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 24% day of June, 2024.

Effective:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Sam Fugate
Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela
City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez
City Attorney




EXHIBIT A
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Beginning at the point where the western right of way boundary of N Armstrong Street meets the
northern right of way boundary of W. F Avenue, thence

East along the northern right of way boundary of W. F Avenue to the point it meets the eastern
right of way boundary of N. 1% Street, thence

South along the eastern right of way boundary of N. 1* Street to the point it meets the northern
right of way boundary of W. Corral Avenue, thence

East along the northern right of way boundary of W. Corral Avenue to the point it meets the
western right of way boundary of Railroad Street, thence

South across W, Corral Avenue to the point the southern right of way boundary of W. Corral
Avenue meets the western right of way boundary of Railroad Street, thence

West along the southern right of way boundary of W. Corral Avenue to the point it meets the
eastern right of way boundary of N. 1% Street, thence

South along the eastern right of way boundary of N. 1% Street to the point it meets the southern
right of way boundary of W. Mesquite Avenue, thence

West along the southern right of way boundary of W. Mesquite Avenue to the point it meets the
northeast corner of Property ID 22344, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 22344 to the point it meets the eastern boundary
of Property ID 20018, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 20018 to the point it meets the northern right of
way boundary of W. D Avenue, thence

South across W. D Avenue to the northeast corner of Property ID 13403, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Prdperty ID 13403 to the point it meets the northern right of
way boundary of W. C Avenue, thence

South across W. C Avenue to northeast corner of Property ID 18037, thence

West along the southern right of way boundary of W. C Avenue to the point it meets the eastern
right of way boundary of N. Armstrong Street, thence

South along the eastern right of way boundary of N. Armstrong Street to the point it meets the
northern right of way boundary of W. Avenue A, thence .

East along the northern right of way boundary of W. Avenue A to the point it meets the southeast
corner of Property ID 15255, thence

South across W. Avenue A to the northeast corner of Property ID 13309, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 13309, continuing west along the boundary of
Property ID 13309, continuing west to the southeast corner of Property ID 16706, thence




West along the southern boundary of Property ID 16706 to the point it meets the eastern right of
way boundary of N. Armstrong Street, thence

South along the eastern right of way boundary of N. Armstrong Street to the point it meets the
northern right of way boundary of W. Nettie Avenue, thence

East along the northern right of way boundary of W. Nettie Avenue to the point it meets the
southeast corner of Property ID 22766, thence

South across W. Nettie Avenue to the northeast corner of Property ID 23758, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 23758, continuing south to the northeast corner
of Property ID 25284, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 25284 to the point it meets the northern right of
way boundary of W. Ella Avenue, thence

East along the northern right of way boundary of W. Ella Avenue to the point it meets the eastern
right of way boundary of N. Wells Street, thence

South along the eastern right of way boundary of N. Wells Street to the point it meets the
northwest corner of Property ID 11998, thence

East along the northern boundary of Property ID 11998, continuing east to the point the northeast
corner of Property ID 11936 meets the western right of way boundary of N 2™ Street, thence

North along the western right of way of N 2nd Street to the point it meets the northern right of
way boundary of W. Nettie Avenue, thence

East along the northern right of way boundary of W. Nettie Avenue to the point it meets the
eastern right of way boundary of N. 3% Street, thence

South along the eastern right of way boundary of N. 3™ Street to the point it meets the southwest
corner of Property ID 20221, thence

West across N. 3™ Street to the point it meets the southeast corner of Property ID- 18226, thence

West to the point the southwest corner of Property ID 20218 meets the eastern right of way
boundary of N. Wells Street, thence

South along the eastern right of way boundary of N. Wells Street to the point it meets the
southern right of way boundary of W. Richard Avenue, thence

West along the southern right of way boundary of W. Richard Avenue to the point it meets the
northeast corner of Property ID 18032, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 18032, continuing south to the northeast corner
of Property ID 12918, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 12918 to the point it meets the northern right of
way boundary of W. Alice Avenue, thence

South across W. Alice Avenue to the northern boundary of Property ID 24002, thence

West along the southern right of way boundary of W. Alice Avenue to the point it meets the
eastern right of way boundary of N. Armstrong Street, thence

8




South along the eastern right of way boundary of N. Armstrong Street to the point it meets the
northwest corner of Property ID 22010, thence

East along the northern boundary of Property ID 22010, continuing south along the eastern
boundary of Property ID 22010 to the point it meets the northern right of way boundary of W.
Kleberg Avenue, thence ‘

South across W. Kleberg Avenue to the northeast cofner of Property ID 13752, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 13752 to the northern boundary of Property ID
16224, thence

East to the point the eastern right of way boundary of S. Wells Street meets the northwest corner
of Property ID 25165, thence

South along the eastern right of way boundary of S. Wells Street to the point it meets the
southwest corner of Property ID 20261, thence

West across S. Wells Street to the point the western right of way boundary of S Wells Street
meets the southeast corner of Property ID 16278, thence

West to the point the southeast corner of Property ID 25673 meets the western right of way
boundary of S. Wanda Drive, thence

North along the western right of way boundary of S. Wanda Drive to the point it meets the
southeast corner of Property ID 22667, thence

East to the southwest corner of Property ID 13230, thence

North along the western boundary of Property ID 13230 to the point that it meets the southern
right of way boundary of W. Kleberg Avenue, thence

North across W. Kleberg Avenue to the southwest corner of Property ID 25903, thence

North along the western boundary of Property ID 25903, continuing east along the northern
boundary to the point it meets the northwest corner of Property ID 24402, thence

East along the northern boundary of Property ID 24402 to the point it meets the western right of
way boundary of N. Armstrong Street, thence

~ North along the western right of way boundary of N. Armstrong Street to the point it meets the
northern right of way boundary of W. F Avenue, which is the point of beginning.




EXHIBIT B

BOUNDARY MAP

3
*

Whvenwes

i B BN e
- Muusux ln

i w1

Q FILG Tiurg

e ps

. ig WURpEEY N

- -pad Kvwanri,

O Kanady Ve T

1 - Rz Boundary

10



EXHIBIT C
PRELIMINARY PROJECT PLAN AND FINANCE PLAN

11




Juawidor2aag AwouoIz s . .
11113d diAva . . i ZlL ‘veld Bujpueu|d pue 19soid Aleupwlieid

“sexa) “a[jIASBUIY 4O AUD
yZoz annr ‘  C# 9U0Z 1UBWIISOAUIDY JUBWBIoU| Xe|

NVTd ONIONVNIJ ANV 193rodd AHYNINITIYA



WaWd0pAIQ JWU0IT
Li1L13d QlAva

usieaq sy) 4o uolsinoxe w_nmﬁmmheg ue fofus pue
suonoeAe |200] 10 ‘SJUsAD pauleld BUjLIaXS ‘slnasnw
9U0IS|Y AUBI INO JO BUO ING, *BYIje S{E00| PUB SIoYSIA

40} SJUBWIS||GeISS |(e1dl pUE ‘Siuelnelsal ‘sapAoe.

100PING 4O UORIB(AS BSIPAIP B 1940 Alpnold aljiAsSury

“Hodiy unog B1eq3)y oiul
Ay nok uaym a|gissaose ABie|peww; osje S 9|[IAsBuy
"SSUlINY PajUN PuB I1SaMUIN0S ‘UBoLIBUIY AG PAAISS S|
pue “odiy jeuopeuisiu) isuyy sndioy Jo IsemyINos
SSliW 8¢ Puleco] S| AjIsEulY "proIlley oyjoey uojun
3yl Aq 901M9s Jed Bujosino pue Bujwoou] E_B.v.mzmm
osje si Q19 syl “yona Aq a)IAsguny 0y JUSIUBAUCD Bie
UOISTIOH pue RspyY sndigd Jo suiod ay) Wwoly pue o}
Sjuawdys 'seljeq pue UoISNOH “o|UCILY UBS WO} sau|
Bunosuuod ySnoiyl aojales punogiio pue punoqui
aplaoid sisjied Yaniy |euoneu pue [eao} Yyiog ‘peos
Asnq e s} 10p1100 69 8y Jo Led & 9W009(] 03 U0OS 'L 2
AemyBIH "09|Xal 01 SEXOL WO} 6PILI0D Jofew e S| YoM
‘L4 AeMUBIH S’ o I8n[ sis Ao syl Kuunwuioy
19351 Ule\ v, Se'Jjas)| sajowoid Jeyy AHunwwos sy
Joy snid- & s| shemys|y Jofew o) Aywixoid s, 9]|IAsBupy

*s3juediuog [eISNpUl 00G 8uNJo4 |BI3ABS puB uojjelS
Y [eABN B '3|IASBUIY WY Sexal ‘Asiaaun yoleasas
aliqnd Buipea) e 0} swoy osje s| pue ajdoad 000'G2
Ajieau 03 swoy S| sINSULY ‘JSaM aL Lo A1junog ysnig
3yl pue 3889 3y} UO ISEOD JINH SeXSL Y} UIAMISq
pauopisod s} ‘A1unod Breas|y uj pareso) X1, ‘syiAs3ury

T# ZYIL ‘ue|d Sujouruly pue 1afold Aleupuyald

*[ep9ew g Aelw Sa0UBIBYLP BY) pus ‘pajoedxa se 1ngoo
10U, @p ARUSNDI) SIOUBISWNOLD PUE SJUBAS SSTIEISG SYNSHI [BAYIL plit
payoafold Usamieq saouSIEHIP aq Aljensn i a1ayy AJojoydisd 191w pue
Jawnsuod SujBueyo 0} 199[qns SE Jjam Se ‘|edijake aq ueo s19y)iew Bujsnoy
pue Awouods ay 1eu) usn3 Aenonted qoipaid o} JROYIP S) aInn} ey

‘paynsnl |Ns 818 Aol 1ey) eansue o1 Ajeojpopted suopdwnsse
199foud A8y YS|Aa1 0} pUE A|SNORUUOD 19IEW B1RIS3 (B3I pUB ALIOUDD
Y3 Joyuous o} (2D & Y ‘|Balioko ale SKIeW @lelsa [Bal pue aSueyd
UEd SUOPIPUOD DJUIOL03 T2y} USAD ISMIEW 81EISS B9l PUE AWIOUOD
|E00] Jo/puE ‘lEUCREU BY} JO BIUBRWIONSD PBIOSHXD BYY puR SUORIPUCD
19iBW- JUBLIND UO- PBSEQ BJE SUDREPUSLILIONa] PUE SUGISRJOUGD JnQ

HIWIVIOSIa
gy v Xipuaddy i
S — - suopipuog pue suue, |
g ——" ey Aigiseed tepuend [l
L 51509 30001 Ml

juawdojaasq pasodosg i

¥ diyssoumo 2 suompuog juaang il

P Krepunog zyiL I

T uoponponu; Il

Sjusuoy Jo sjqet

pIOMal04



wdoraq Juweuoa pocnll § 5 |
11113d Aiava T# ZH1). 'ueld Sujsueulg pue joefoid Aeupwgjard

Arepunog zuiL- 1

VY M

“Anjediojunuis 2U3 JO YIMOIE punos sy3 Jjedu 03 sNUU0S plom Auadaoid payoads auy ‘ZMIL 83U} Jo uopeusWRIdw)
aA0sdW 9534 pUny UeD ZM|L BYL 'sjues3 uswdojenap 9|wou0os pue ‘Fupysy 19a4s pue sa)n ‘sanioe} yed
'191em 0] pajejal sjuswanosdw olgnd u) 988'651'€$ J0 Buipuny ay3 sauipno ue|d Buoueuy pue 108foid Lieujwijead syl

. BU INOYUM “SJASBUIY Jo AUD ay3 Sulpnjouy ‘suonaipsun| Sujxey s|qS)e Jo uopedoped wa10[eA pe yYSnoiy3 sjustw
Pue adeds uado ‘sjusiusnoidw} UoIOaSISIUl PUE 133118 SE [|am SB ‘SIUIJIOB) J91BM WIOJS pUE “4oMas Aeyues

suong|psun{ 3uixe) [e20] |[2 0} SNUAARS Xel feuopyppe plaik
M 18y} uswidojansp ayeapd mmﬂ:oo:.w 01 pue aunjannsesyu) aiqnd pspasul JO UORINAISUDD aY) puny 0} SI (Z# ZHEL) T# SU0Z USWISBAUIRY US| XBL Jo (20T BYL "sexal ‘|iAsBulM JO AI1D ‘OM, JSqUINN BUOZ JUBUNISAAUIRY SE
sHw Ao sy UM eade ajydesSoss snongpuos e ajeud|sap 0} 3URUIPIO UR JSPISUOD [|IM ‘Opo) XeL Ssexal ay3 jo TTE Jardey o Juensind ‘(,U01Ss|WWOD,, YY) Sexal. ‘alltasBuly 40 A1 8Y3 Jo UoISSIWWOD Al BYY PZOZ *¥Z Sunr Uuo

(Z411) U0Z JusUnSaAUlaY JuSWBIOU) Xel, ese eale olydesd0s3 au) Jo uoneug|sap ay} ‘_8 NQ IN290 10U pjNom

Jeus wuswdojerspal pue EwEac_gmu.;m: Joj pajegiel eale ojydeigoad.e ayeud)sap Aew Ao v "esle o[ydes30a3 payioads e upIm JuswdojeAapal pue JUSWAGCIBASE MaU 1oq sjowiold 0} pash |60) & §] (411) Buioueul JusWIBIdY| XBY

sl[IAsFuly 0 AYD ‘Z# SU0Z JUIWIISIAUIRY JUSWAIIYY XL

uo1oNpPo.f



uaidopanag Jwouoaz
LiLl3d diava

: ’ Qouay} .wmwbw Sliam
zuobmuczofﬁfoﬁw:Emwmmmmﬁﬂwwswﬂmowo_?maea ho‘_m:aoummsﬁsomm_.f:_oaoﬁoﬁmw\s

80UaY} ‘92Z8T Al Auadold 0 190100 1SBSUINOS B S1BaL Y utod sy 0y 19315 pJE N SS008 1SoM

: . [ousLy ‘Tzzoe af Auadolg
uoLmEooumm;sSommﬁﬂmm&:E_onmﬁo:mmbmu‘_mzuo bmuc:on\ﬁsuoucm:Emummwmﬁ m:o_mE:ow

. 33usy} 199N PIE N Jo Atepunoq Aem
o WEN weises sy sywaw 31 Juod auy) oy BNUdAY 9ISN M Jo A1epunoq Aem jo S| usyliou sy Juoje jsey

. B0UBY} ‘9NUBAY B1130N M 10
baucsoa%ﬁozmzEosﬁo:mﬁﬂmmsuzc_oaméoﬁmm:w ucwz_gmfozw:Eme;oEmco_mstoz

93UsY} 19318 puZ N Jo Atepunaq Aem jo 43U uie)SoM By S198W OEETT Q1 Ausdoid
30 Iautod yseaytou-syy Juled ay) 0} 1sE3 Suihuued '866TT al Auadold Jo K1epunog uisyiou sy Suaje Iseg

‘ a3ualy} 'g66TY al Auadoid jo
Jalliod Jsamypiou sy s1as 3] Jujod Suy3 0} 199G S[I3M N JO Alepunog Aem 30 JyBu wisises ayy Buole ynog

: . 90UBY) 499NS SII9M N JO Alepunog
Aem Jo B E&mamoﬁﬂmmEu_E_oamsuoumscm><m__m\sn_c bmuc:cn%\fozwzsustoco.:m:o_m ummm

90UBY} ‘anUBAY B3 M Jo Alepunog
Kem Jo BN wisyyiou ay seaw Y Jujod 91 01 $8ZSe qI Auadold Jo Atlepunoq wisisea sy Suoje ynog

L 2auaYy) ‘P8z ST ai
Aiadold jo 1aul00 1seayLIOU mﬁo..ESoww:_::_Eoo.wmnmwo;tmnok:c bmuc:onE&mmmmﬁ&co_mﬁzow

80UaY) ‘gG2£Z al Auradoag 10 18ul0d ISBBULIOU 2y} 0} SNUBAY BI1ISN M SSOI0E yInog

. . 3ouap '99/2e q) Auadoid o
181102 15B3UINOS By} S19aw I ujod B3 0} SnuBAY SIISN M 40 bmuczoim\fozm_hEa:tocoﬁw:o_wummm

32UeY) ‘anusAy 819N M 4o Aspunoq Aem jo
B ureYIoU ay) s1e8WW 3] Jujod By} O} Joans Buonsuuy N Jo Kiepunog Aem Jo 3y uisisea ay) Suole yinog

83usy} 19anS Buonsuny N jo
Aiepunoq em JoJysu utelses ayysieaw )l Julod oYy 03 90 /9T atAuedosd Jo £iepunoq walpnos syy Buoje 1sam

, 20UsY1 ‘90.L9T QI Auadold JO 15U1001SBAYINGS Y3 03 159Mm BulNUPUOD ‘GOEET
Ql Auedold jo Atepunog auy Suoje 1sam Suinupuoes ‘60EET Qi Auadoid jo Aiepunoq wielses sy} Suoje YInog

90UBY} ‘GOEET QI Auadoid JO JouLod ISBAULIOU 3U3 O} VY SNUBAY M SSOLOR YIN0S

. 89usL} ‘S5ZST Q) Auadold
10 19160 35EIN0S BU) SjeBW 3 JUI0d U3 0 ¥ BNUAAY M JO Alepunog Aem Jo JySu uraLIOU Bu Buoje 1se3

B2UBY} 'Y SNUBAY M Jo Alepunog Aem jo
YB) urayLIoU Al s1eaw 3 Jutod By} 03 19318 Buonsuny N jo Arepunog Aem Jo JuB) weises sy} Sudje nog

- ‘ N
T# ZYIL ‘'ueld Bujpueurd pue yafoiy Aeujuijeig

20UBY} ‘Jesiis Buonsuy N Jo Alepunog
Aem Jo 1B wisises ay) s1eaL 3 Juiod By} 0} SNUBAY J M O Asepunog fem 10 331 WaYInos auf) Buoje 1SoM

aouay} ‘2€08T Q| AHadoid JO 1UI0D ISEYLIOU 0} BNUBAY J M SSOI0E LINoS

80UBY) 'BNUBAY O M J0 Alepunoq
Aem 30 1yBl wiayiou ayy s19aw 3) jujed duy) o} €OPET QI Ausdorg Jo Alepunoq wsisen ayy Suofe yinog

30U} ‘COVET QI AUSd0Id JO J8L1I0D 1SBIYLIOU U} 0} BNUBAY G M SSOIOR NS

80usY} ‘anusay g M Jo Alepunog
Aem 40 Y3 useyuou ayy sieaw 3 julod ayy 0} 8T00¢ {1 Ausdoid Jo Aiepunoq wisisea syy Suoje yinog

8dual '8T00T al
Apadoud jo Liepunoq uig)ses sy s199W1ulod 81003 pEET ) Aadold Jo Alepunog uisises oyl Buoje ynos

89UBYl "YrEZE Q] Auedold 4o fouioa
1SE9YLIOY B} S)BW 1 Juiod auy 0 anuaay a)inbsaly M 1o Alepuncq Aem jo JySH useLINoS auy Suoje 1saMm

20UBLy} ‘BanuaAY s)nbsa M Jo Alepunog
Aem J0 B1 uisyINos By} S1EBW 3 JUI0d S} 0} 198A1S 1ST N Jo Alepunog Aem Jo Y31 wisisea ay) Suoje yinos

20UBYY} 19811 IST N J0 L1Iepunog Aem
40 WS| wssee ayy s1eaw 1) Jujod Byl 03 snusAY [B1I0D M Jo Kepunoq Aem Jo JYB|1 WISYINOS oY Buoje I1sapm

B0UILL 198G PROL(IEY 10 A1epuUnod Aem Jo JYSI LIoISOM
9} SJ23U BNUSAY [210] M J0 Alepunog Aem Jo YSL UIBLINGS Y Wiod SY3. 03 BNUSAY 21100 M SS0I0R uinog

ousLy 1eang peolliey jo Liepunog kem
40 3431 WisISoM SUE S199W 3 Julod BY) 0) ANUBAY 21100 M JO A1RPUNOY Aem 40 1St urayuou ay) Suoje iseg

80UBY3 ‘aNUBAY [21I00 M 40 Alepunog
Aem Jo yBu uteyLiou ay) s19aw ) Jujod By} 0} 1981S IST N 40 A1BpUNOq Aem Jo JyB wialses sy Buole yinesg

|guayy aumbW 1ST N 40 Atepunoq
fem Jo WBY walses ay) s19aW 1 Julod Y3 0} BnusAY J M J0 Alepunog Aem jo Y3 wiByuou ay) guoje iseg

9uay} ‘anuany 4 M Jo Aepunoq Aem Jo 14U
uisyiiou ay} sjesw 19a.1g Buonsully N Jo Kiepunog Aem Jo ySu ulolsam ayy alaym ujod syl Je BujuuBog

2# ZYi1 vopdussaq {2397

“Moloq |iejap Ul paquosap st 9U0Z a3 10) uonduosap (eBe) oY) "IASBULY JO AL BU} JO SHWI| A0 SYI UIYIM PIED0) SIk GE AlBlewxoidde 30 SISISU0D g# ZYHIL

:o:n_‘_cm.mn_émv::om

Arepunog zy1L



EQE%E.&Q Jlwouoaz
1iLi3d aiava

‘BuuuiFaq jo yutod oyy SI YoIuM ‘anuany 4 M Jo Aspunoq Aem jo
W81 wayou duy sjeau 3 Jujod sy 0 9enS Buonsuny N Jo Aiepunoq Aem Jo JySii uio1sem syl Buole yuoN

80usy} 1eans Fuoliswuy N Jo
Asepunoq fem 403YBu wislsam au) s} 3 Juod sy 0) 2otz al Auedold o Liepunog uisyuiou ayj Suoe Ise3

S0uUsL ‘20trtre Al Aedold JO 18Ul0d ISSMULIOU 2y} steau 3] Jujod
8y 01 Alepunoq wisyuou sy} fuoje 1ses BUINURUOY ‘S06GT Q1 Auadoid o Aiepunoq us)som ayy Buoje yLoN

90UBUY‘'£06GZ (1f AUadold JO JaU100 ISBMUINGS BY3 0] anuaAy 1508y M SS0198 YUON

0URYY ‘aNUBAY Bleqaly m Jo Alepunog
Aem 40 WU wBLRNoS ay) sisaW ) 124} Jujod ayy 01 0ETET Ul Auadoid Jo Atepunog ulaysem ay} Suole yLoN

82UsLN'0EZET QI AUadoud Jo 13UI09 1SaMUINGS BUL 0] IS8T

.H*Nm:._:m_n_ u:_u_._m.:_.._ u:waom_.o:_bm:_&__wi

R s

-80UAY} L99¢ T d| Auadold Jo
J3U109 1SE3UIN0S Y} S193WW i JUI0d BUY 0} DAL BPUBM S JO AIEPUNOG Aem Jo SN UIISaM ayj Suoje uuoN

aJuaY] ‘aAlI] BPUBM
S Jo Alepunog Aem Jo JyB1 UISISOM BU) S1OOW £96T d) Auadold Jo 13u400 3sB3YINOS 3U) Juiod BU) O} 1SOM

29uay} '8/ZaT ql Auadoid Jo 18ulog
1se9UIN0S 8Y}1 5199 188118 S)lem S 40 L1epunog Aem 4o 1B uisisem ai1 Julod BY} 0} 19918 S|IBM § SSOI0RISHM

90UBU} ‘TOZOT I Auadoid jo
18U102 JSaMUINOS BY) s)a 3 JIod JUL 03 39348 S||9M S JO A1BpUNOY Kem Jo WSH ulslses ayy 3uole yinog

sousyy '59TSZ dl
Auadoud Jo 18uJ02 ISIMULIOU BY) SOOI 189N SHIM S JO Alepunog Aem Jo 1BI uisises ay3yuiod ay) 0} I1se7

soualy
'¥229T Al Auadord-jo Aepunog uiByUIoU 8U3 03 2G.ET g) Auadold Jo Kiepunoq wsisea ay) Suofe ynos

89UBY} ‘ZG/ET ) Auadold J0 J3U100 JSEAYLIOU BY) O} ONUaAY B15G8) M SSOIE YINOg

2ouayy ‘anusay Bis03))l M 40 Atepunog Aem Jo JYSU uIsyHIou 8y} st 31 julod 8U} 0} OT0TT A AJadoid
Jo Arepunog uisises sy) Buole (inos BuNupuod ‘0Tz al Auedold Jo Aieplnog ulayuiou au Buoje ise3

3%udU) ‘0TOZZ Gl Auadold Jo Jeuion
1SOMULIOU B3 S199W ) Jujod ayy 0} Jeans Suonsuuy N Jo Aiepunoq Aem o W3 ussisea ayy Buoje yInog

ddusYy Yeans Suonsuuy N jo Aiepunog
AeMm Jo YT visises oY) sjeaw J jujod alj} 0} BNUSAY 33y M Jo L1epunag Kem 3o Iy wisLnos ayy Suoie 1SoMm

20UBY} 'Z00YZ Gl AMadold JO A1pUNOg UIBYLIOU 31} 0} SNUSAY 91|V M-SSOI0E YInog

83Uay} 'anuany gy M Jo Alepunog
Aem Jo S wByUIoU By} s1BaW Y lujod By} 0) 8T6CT dl Aadold jo Liepunog ulolses ay} guole yinos

?0uay '8T6ZT Q!
Auadold Jo 1oul00 JsEaY1I0U SU) 03 YOS BUINUNU0Y '2e08T Al Auadold Jo Alepunog u191ses ayy Buoje yinosg

80UBYY ‘ZE08]T qj Auadold Jo
J3U102 15R3L1I0U B 190w ) Julod S} 0} BNUBAY RIBYOIY M JO A12punog Aem Jo JuSH WayInos sy Suoje 1sem

39UBL ‘SnuBAY pIeydly M JO Aiepunog
Aem 40 B} LIBUINOS B S1esW )1 JuId BU) 03 199G S[19M N Jo Alepunog Aem Jo JuFi uIs)ses ey} Buoje yinos

(ponupuo)) g# zyiL uonduoseq egeT

fiepunog zuiL



wauidopmag Jweuos.
j2A2Q 2} 7 - 14

T# ZHIL ‘veld Supueu)y pue uom—o._.n_ Aeujwijard

) *Zd11 943 JO 1NsSI B Sk saaueulplo
‘soueulplo Bujuoz ajjIAsBury Jo KD syl o} saguryd Aue 3G |Im a1y pajedionue jou si 3 ‘JusWdo[9Aap 2ninj AUR S1EPOWodOe 0} PAL0ZEL 8q
Ty pauoz uopsod & yum (usaid u) papeys) € 01siq >__Emu._==_>_ ‘€Y pue (pas ul papeys) JOISIQ eIRY 120 PaU0Z Alllewulid S| Zu1L Y} UM pug| ay)

Jedjolunw J3LI0 10 Suofje|nSal pue sajn uolsiipans ‘sepoo Ju|pjing ‘ueid Joisew
01 posu Aewr Apadosd ay L *(mojiek ul papeys) T 10Msiq Alwed-aiBuls :

Sujuoz
) 'sesodind [epuap)sel Joy pasn s} ‘paumo Ajolignd sy 3eyy Ausdozd Bujpnjaxe ‘suoz suy uj Ausdold au Jo uaniad gg uey) ssa7 ‘Juawdojorsp
M3U 10} pazynn &9 0} pauohisod jjam S1e Yeu} 10813 JUBSEA puk s30| Supjied esepns SNoLIBA Os|e 2. B1oy) JusWdo[aA8Pal 10} PRUOHIISO [lom 912 JBY} S9SN [ejoIaWWod YiMm padoersp Auewd ) suoz sy} Ulynm puel syl

asn pue

SUORIPUOY B4IND



upwdoianag ooz
1lL13d diAva

- . s

. : 'V xipuaddy 23S Zy1). 9y} uyym papnjou; sjpaled Jo slie1ep Jayuny 404 "a|qE|ieAR BiE S3N[eA S|qexe) HZOT 1BUL SY1 UayMm JaLIsid (esielddy
fwuno) 81391y Aq paynian aq of paau [Im mz_m>mmmn¢Nowuﬁ.wmm.mow.wﬁwm_Nm_._.oEE..E;b._mnoam_._toms_g ummnw_nmxma_umumEzwwwE..N*mgNEmEﬁm>c_omEmEmzoc_xm.r:_ﬁ_sm_wo\_wa NOﬁbEut:oEQOﬁ

diysiaumg a1ing
"ZY11 341 J0 uoneussduil ay) Jo YNSaI SE PSIEI0|R] 8] 0 PISU Jo Pade|ds|p oq jiim suosiad Aue Jey)} payedionue Jou si b}

paoejdsiq aq o SU0SI94 SUJ1LI0]5Y JO POYIDIN

SUORIPUOY WBLINY



uauidogasag Jwouoz
Li113d aiava

- . 8
T# ZulL ‘veld Sujoueuyy pue 19joig Aeupwjesd

Y B T B B A A S O NI KA T weh A

T e T A A R S P T

£ aded uo pauipno s3s0) 399fo1d ayi puny 01 3nUaARY ZYIL U 988'651'€$ d1elousy
01 paosfoid s uswdorarag patednuy ey uswdojarag Ppajedjojuy ay1 Jo anjea jqexe} bZ0Z PoIeUS? si S1ussaldal 000 00 ST Sx

'000°006'0) :000'00V'GL 7 g CTE e Y]
000°000'¢ $ $ | 000'000'2 $ oo0eg $ 000'0L . "Ge02 leloy
000'002't $ $ | 000'002°L $ o002 $ 000'9 veoe ey
000'009'L $ $ | 000'009°L $ o0z $ 000'8 [43U4 liejay

- 000008 $ $ | ooo'oos $ o0z $ 000y Leoz te1sx
000'00. $ $ | ooo‘oaz $ o0z $ 00s's 6202 Iteroy
000'COE"L $ $ | ooo‘ooge’t $ ooz $ 00s'e 8202 Ifeyoy

- . $ - $ | ooo'00s'y $ o00'sL $ 09 9202 Awegniniy|
000'00€'e $ 00z $ { ooo'coc'e $ 00z $ 005'91 5202 ftejey

14 ZulL

“ZUIL 841 Ulyym pajesaus xey Aladold (es [E3uswWaloul A Wed Ur paoueul 8 PRod ZyIL AL LM SIN020 Jey) Juswidojanap syl ey paredionue st “yels A9 woiy Indul pue JuswdojeAsp pauukld UMOUY ‘SPUSI) 1B UD paseq

‘Z4lL 241 Jo 3j) By} Buunp Jnooo pinod s1afoid AIda 18y uawudojansp [eueiod Jo Bujwp pue adods SUL JO MBIAIBAC Ue SapIADId MOjoq B|qe} syl Uawdojeaspal pue JuswdalaAap ainny 10} PaLCSOd [jom S| 8UOZ AL WIYIM pue] YL

awdojaraq patedpjuy

Juswdolaasq pasodoid



HWwdogEnag Jwouodg
11L13d aiava

- . . £
T# ZHIL ‘veld Aujaueury pue 190foad Areujwiaid

S A e A R 3 e A B Ty Y A S o7 Bty A X SR 2 A

. ‘uoneIspsued o} Jlounog AIY pue pleod zy|l 8ul 0} premioy
1y3no1q pue ‘g0 TTE UOBS TTE Jerdeyn UM JUBIS[SU0D Siseq a5es-Ag-9SED © UO Palen|ens aq
*3uoz [ 51509 193(01d ZHIL |ENPIAIPU] SYY 1eWY: paledjonue S| 3] SuopIpuoa 1@ewW Aq usaup Juswdojerop

ay} Jo} suejd 1sfoid ay3 Jo uoneIuaWa|dwy By 0} Jo BUOZ ALy 40 UORE3ID Y} 0} JUBIUBAUCD JO A1BSS38U SPUL

Joj puewap 0} 195[qNS 'ZY1L S} JO ULIS) SU) JSAC paunou ag o} pajediopue ale s1500 09foid ay)
Apoq Bujusenod ays 1eys Aunoo Jo Ayediounw o} Jo Apoq Bujuianod aY) Jo UORRIISIP BUY IR Spew sjuswied (W) . .

1o e . . 7'au0z 9y u| AJAROR |E19ISLIOD pUB SSIUISNG NEJNLUNS PUB BUOZ 3Y) JWAUSY

) pue aels sjyy Jo :.o._m_zup:m leapijod Jayio 10 Ja13sip 93900 bE:EEoo “Pusip 100Y3s & JO Jleyaq o 1o Aq 12U} SBIAIOR J0J BU0Z B} 40} PUNY JUSLISIOU X} U} OJu Pred pus Aediojunus 3ty Aq paonpoid
PauMo SBUIPHINg Jaylo Lo Sepijioes [euoneanps Jay1o ‘S3ulp|Ing |EUOREINPS JOYI0 .mm:.. ling [00Y0s JO 53503 YL (W) 1UBLIBAU] XB} JO JUNOWE BY) PB3IXa 0} 10U Junowe SjeBas3Re oy} syun pue uejd Sujoueuy
. ’ _-ue(d Josfoid ayy Jo uonejuaalduil pue osfoid e wyum 08e B&mso 40 AtoyIne au) S)IBI9P 8p0Y XEL SeXa) 9y} JO (W ot0°TIE
SU} 10} 3NUIABI [BIBUSR WM AUNED 1o Afjediounul aY) Ag SPEW SUORNGIU0D Aue 40 Junowe ay () U013093 “JuaWdojaAap DiLIOU0TS S1BINWIS 0} SPUN) dlignd Jo Sueo| pue sjuesd Jago o) Auoyine

U3 sexa. ul senijediojunw SJURIS 8p0J JUSIILIAACY [e00T BU) Jo OKE Jerdeyy ustudojensp
isau|1oey 109ford pue suoz Juawisaaulel 8yt Supesado Jo 3509 8y () Em%.n pue 3ijgnd Jo} S30jAI9S pue 'sueo| ‘sjuesd apnjou; Aew sueln Juadojanaq ajwouosy
{pazyeydes

10U J0 Jayaym ‘uopoNNsuU0o Jo uons|dwiod isyje Jeak auo 410} pue uoHdNASUD FUlNp pue 810Ja¢ 1sa193U) (1) "uefd Bujoueuy

: ' ' pue 1afoid ay) 0} JUsWpPUSWE UB INOYIM PAPaBIXa Bg 10U |{eYS 1BYL SaINYpuadxs uo dese
PaIBpISU0D 8q ||BYS JUNOWE |10 1509 100[0.d 988'6GH'E$ OUL "Wal BUl ISYIOUE U] 9SBIOU| 1S0O &
0} pajjdde aq Aew Wa)) ou)| SU0 W0 SBUIABS “PasIAL) aq AeW pue SIjewWSs ale anoge pais|| $1509
151500 Uo3Ro0fRI (4) uo.w_‘oa 8UL "8po) XB| Sexa) 3L} 4o 20O TTE U0NR0as ‘TTE Jeydeyd Jopun ajqisie m.uom_.oa.__m apnjoul
0} uBdW 3le pue ‘sjuswanoiduy atgnd SNojIeA BUING SA0GE J]ge] Y} U] Pals]| SSU0TSIRd JY)

‘auoz sy Joy ueld j03foid sy Bupuswaidiul §6 1500 aU pue ‘auoz oY) 40 uonessds ay Bujzjajiand Jo
1502 2y} ‘S9[PNIs 1810 10 Sa|pn}s 10edW jEIUBLILGIIAUS SUONPUOD JO SIS00 BY) Buipniou 's1509 [BUOpEZIUERIO (B)

tueyd J0afoud e Jo uopeusWaldw) aY) Y1} UD[93UL0D Uf Aunod 10 Ayediojunw

- 8U1 Jo seafojdwia Aq Juads swpy oy} Joj saBieyo sjqeusEa) Buipnjoul ‘s1500 aAnes|ujwpe pandwy (3) © %00% 988'65Y'E - S -jejoL
'se01nes pue - %0'€E L6L'E0T S . $150) dAlIEASIUILPY
BAIAPE |eZe] pue ‘BujiasujBus ‘Bujuueld ‘2IMOsyYAIe 10} paINaUl 550U} BuIpn|ou) 'S1S00 AOJAIES Teuoissajord (q) %0E 996'LE0'T 3 R sjueln u:mEa..u_guo djuouody
+83500 Alquiesse Auadoud |eas (D) %01 .mma,mem s sjuswanosdw pue san|ed 3jqnd .ﬂ_.._uEwB.aE_
“RUMew s10jeq SUORESIIGO OU} J0 UORAWIpal pue sajifj1ae4 UoNEAIIBY pUue Yied ‘ereds uadg
9} Jo asnEeoaq SUOREB]IqR By} JO Junowe tediouud suy Jaro pred wnjwaid Aue pue 51509 199(01d 10} Aed 0} ponss! " -
SUONESIIGO 18U30 0 SSBUPSIGAPU] JO SBIUBPIAG JO siapioy o} pied 3sa191u1 jje Buipnjou) ‘s)soa Suioueuy {g) dauapIadxa upliysapad aify 3ubYUs 10y} SIIUBWD 13Y30 pup ‘Up Jygnd &:.acm.:..m%u&mmhm
‘pue| jo Suipeid pue m:_hmm_.o 3y} pue Juawdinba pue puep jo uosinboe By Jo 53S0 |enjoe By} %zl . | 981'STY 3 — SjUAWAIULYUT URLIISIPIY
pue Is3uipiing s1eapd Jo ojignd Jo uop|jowap ayy Jo 1500 [enjoe Y ‘Bulpjing a1ead 1o olignd e Jo apede; ayy jo o 36'31S S SUSWaN0 0] UOI85Ia3U] PUE 193135
uoneAsasald au3 JO $1509 [enjoe au SJuIp)ing 1o pue| s1eaud 40 9jgnd SjeuLLIeIU0S JeY) SUONIPUO JO UoieIPaWal

mﬁ%ﬂmoo_maammcﬁm..&aéucm_wm‘_Euzam.mm:_v__nnm:_um_xﬁoco:o:bm:oomto;_maw._.mc:muoEQ xmﬁ mmmdﬁm. ..... Sjuawianoidw] Ysuell pue uppied
‘uonesaye ‘uonijowap ‘uopisinkoe By} JO S1SO2 |eN1oR By 'SAIMXY PUE ‘S21n30N48 ‘SBUIP|INg Mau ‘siuswencidw| ’ : S3uaLIAAOIAW] PUD SO0 J9)0M
aljiqnd *sy1om o)jgnd JO UORONNSUOD pue UoRpisinboe Y1 JO $1500 [enjoe a3} Buipn|ou) 's3s09 |endeo (y) W3S ‘spuatuanoldul] pup sapijiapd 1amas A1D3iung ‘spuawianoaduy pun sapjiang 1310

1apnjouy ,$1509 393(0id,, *Suolies|iqo pue saan)puadxa aSouy) 0} [2JUSP|OU) SIS0 J3UJ0 - %ST £€86°81S $ salnn Agnd
sn|d ‘auoz ayy Bujyauaqg s309foid 1810 10 ‘swesgoid ‘spuawanoidu ojignd ‘syiom alignd Jo $1509 se ueld joafoid B ] - TH# YL - 5150) uumgo._.m pasodoid
U1 Ul P3|} a1 Jey) SUOZ JUSWISIAU)AI & BujjeuBisap Aunod 4o AY(edidjunu oy} Aq paiinou) 8q oy pajewnss Jo - - -
Paunou| suopes|iqo Aueiduow pue apewl aq o) pajRUISS 10 apew saINy|puadxa ay} suesw ,s3s09 39fold, (T) “ZH1L 9y uiyum parelsuad xey Ausdold jead [ejusiualoul Aq Led uj Ag paoueuy
. : 89 [liM 1YL Z# BUOZ JUSLUISAAUISY JUSWIDIOU| XBL UMM SUSWaA0IdLf JO J19GLINY € Je 919y
“Z00TIE "99S ] [liM 1YL T# BUOZ I oy .
3P0Y Xel sexal ayl Jo TTE Joydeyd : N 8U0Z aY} J0 SJS0D 19af0id

$)s09 109f0id



Juawdogenag Jusouciz
11L13d dlAva

; S - 8

, *A1089129 S|4} U] papn|ou} ase Juswdinba pue salnjpusdxs Buneaw
‘sasusdxe juswageuew 'K ey 10 s99) Bunsuos pue 539} [e8a} Bulpnjou) sasuadxa aAleAsIuIWpE paje|al talo
“Ueld Buiouieuyy pue 309f0id ay) jo uopeIusaldw] 3y} YyMm UoRIBULOD Ul pue s10303.|(] Jo pJeog 8} Aq |eroidde
uodn 51500 J09foid SE JuBWIBSINGISA 10} 31q1S15 2 [IiM ZYIL BUI UM UopEJUSWS W] YuM ISISSE 0) ‘A0 2y

40 seafojdwa Aq Juads ewp sy to} seBieud s|qeuosEo) Sulpnjou] ‘51500 SANBISIUILIPY 151500 SANEASIUILPY

*3U0Z AU} U} AIANOE [BI0IDWLIOI PUR SSAUISNG BBINWIS

Pue auoz sy} Jyauaq Jey} SaRIAJIOR 10§ JUOZ 3Y) JOf PUNY JUSWIIOU) Xe]. BUY o pled pue Ayjedjojunus ayy Aq
paonpoud Juswalouf Xe} Jo Junowe atyy Da82xa 0130u Junouwe sjegaldRe suy) swY pue ueld Sujoueul pue 109foid

€ Uiuum 08€ Jardeyd Jo Aoyine ayj sjjesp apog xey, sexal a3y} o (4) OTO"LTE Uopoas uswdolorap ojwouood
aje|nwps 03 spuny algnd jo sueo] pue syueId 19150 03 Atouine ayy sexal ) sepledipiunw sjuels spon JUBWUIDA0D
18907 3Lp Jo 08¢ Ja3dey) siuels Juswdoioasp Olwioucas pue UoneIpsWS) [EIUBLIUCIAUS ‘UoijowSp ‘uoneAlasald
JHOISHY i8Aj0AUI JeU) S1aafosd apnjou] os|e el pue ssn 91gNd 0} PaY} 10U D18 $1500 1weford 2M11. o1qi83
“Wawdolarap ayeaud pue ajgnd Joy S89)A8S pue ‘suko] ‘syuesE apnjoul ABw sjy} isuely Juswidojereq oajwounsy

*A1039719 S} WOJJ PAPURS 9 UED pue sasusdxe 8o zyIL

a1e uolysinhoe pue| pue ‘syuswsaoidu) ‘UBIS3P §0 53500 "sjusLLan0IdW BNIgNd JBYI0 JO SAYS 10 ‘SajIoR) 'SHIOM
alignd jjeysuy Jo “PNISU0IaL JonIIsuoo ‘alinbde 0} pasn ag Kews spuny z11 ‘(av)soo'TTe ‘938 ylm'souepIodoe
U] isjuawanoidw) pue sajyjioey sjigng ‘sjuswianosdiu) pue sapyey uoieasaay pue yied ‘asedg :m.no

T# ZUIL ‘veld Supueu)y pue uoo?& Areujuyjaig

"9oualiadxe ueyisapad ay1 2oUBYUS Jel) SAPjUBWER JSYI0 pue Le o)gnd Sapnjout

SIUL “Bupysy vesapad pue syoe1 SYIq ‘einjuiny 19818 uepIsapad ‘stgjue|d ‘sjustanctdwl 192.4s 'sBuiume
‘(AIlgissaoae (Vavy) 10y SAIGESIQ Yim Ueduswy) qing AoueBiaws pue uelisepad ‘sY|EMSS0I0 uepysapad
‘Suppied pajBue pue (o)|eled Y(sjokoiq pue snq “§'o) sauel [9Aed] paleys ‘sijemap)s :ssedwoous Aews yojym
SuswsAoidil] Suipiing 03 Sulpjing ay3 apnioul s1eaNs 9}91dwo0 Jo stuswaly .u:wEum.mE_ pue Juswdoansp
Mau Jo fja)eA apim e sseInosus pue spoddns wieas ayand suisesid e Buijesl?) “SI0YSIA pue SJUSpISal

104 390 Buniiau) pue ‘ajes ‘Bujses|d-A)jeapayisae ‘pajusuo-uejsspad 2UORIUNEYINLL JO UORONIISUCD

8y} 9en0aus [IIm ZHIL 8Y | isiusWsaueyug ueplsapag pue sjuaiaroidil Uo129sI3| puB oSNNS

PSP

s uj awdo[aaspal pue ewdojaaap [euolippe Inds 01 1sAjeleo & se e pue goueyua 0} spuswidojanap
palsjuas-uemysapad .m_ns__ms ‘j0edwos ajessd 0} S| 1R0P SUL "suonels SulFiey [eolndeje pue sYSop
/s1818W Bupired ‘BuipuyAesm pue a3eugis Bunied Bunys) Bupjred Bupped soeyns 'saFeied Supued ‘o)
paYW j0u ] Ing ‘sapnjou Bupjied “sluswIdojoAsp pajuajIc-jIsUeS Jo aSN-paxiw aining e spualwdojansp
IIe1ad pue ‘lejuapisal ‘|ejdiawuiod o} sseooe a1jqnd Joddns pue JuswidoeAap JasuUsp a92IN0oUS 0} pazin
8q Aew ‘Bupsixa ho‘um.uu:bm:oo AImau Jayioym ‘saanonais Supjied isjusuanosdu) ysuesy, pue Supped

“J31EMULLIOLS [0J3U0D SSIMIBLIO0 JO Ulelap “oaiip ‘Alieo

0} Papuau] Jo PIUBISAP SAOIAIP SO0 0 STVASP UORUSIBP ‘sadid ‘sajems .m.m:.ou_n ‘sjauueyo ‘synpuod pue
SaInjes) [einmeu spnjouf ues SWasAs/SanIoRS *MOJ} JO 831 U3 21BjNFa) pUe [0U0D 0} PUE UOREUSWIPIS
PUE U0[S013 2A1SS90X3 apNn|oaid 0} JJoun Islemiulols s1einsal pue s1epoLsIIe 03 SUoisiAoId |eo|sAyd ayy.
sesseduiodus s8eulelp Aynn -ueld yafoid ayy Jo Jusuodiuog epoduwn ue sgeulelp Ann sedosd Bupjew
‘aimanaseul BuiSe ue saey ZHI1L 8U3 UM SeaIR AUBY [SJUSTURAILY) pUE SapjIoe Jojep WIS

*swaysfs [esods|p pue sueld usuneal) ‘s:0)ds0193Uf ‘SUEW JUna SaPN[oU] pue ‘a3emas Jo [esodsip o
‘Jusuneal] ‘Uo|SsiLUSURI) ‘U0|392]109 U 403 PAUTISSP SWBISAS 10 SRINIBNNS JO UCRINNSUOD pue Supesuus
‘ugisap Joj) sainjipuadxs w._n_w_._u Z411 sepnjoul A108e1e0 Sjy ] isjuawianodui] pue safifjioe] Jomas lejueg

“ZiL U} Jo Juawidolenapal
pue Juswdojersp ay) Moddns Jey) slusWaAcIdu) pUe SBRIjioR) J91BM 4O UOIIONIISUOD puE SulasulSud
‘ugisap Joy sainypuadxe s|qiSie ZHIL SOPNoU) A0Baied S|y isuswiarosdul] pue sapyjaeg 191.M

0} PAYLI)| J0u S| INg SIPNIDU SIBRN dNlGnd

51509 109f01d



Juddoprag auouoay

6
L1LL3d aiava Q™™

T4 ZAIL ‘veld Supueuly pue «ow?n_ Kreujwijiarg

NN B R A R L G P RN S RS ST

— . “uopejuswald)
0000000 | . : ”
Aunon Biagapl S1 INOIM INI0 JOU PINOM JBU) S)YBUSQ JIOUCTD LYYM SUO[IOIPSUNT Bulxel Jau1o pue 1D syl apjroid M pue
100 e _v__ 210/se3) £]jeajwou0s s} Z4)L SY13eUl PUNo} ey 3dd Apms ALIgISes) SIU} Uj PaUIRNO LopeuLoyul au FuZnn
Siunstupiso fuol - *90IAIDS 1GOp
e R | - PueBujoueul Jo POYIoWI BY) SE ||oM SB SUOROIPSHN{ Fu|xe) [200] UL JO YIee 0} aUOZ 3Y3 JO S1UBUaq 38U BU pue
) . . ) : ) : : 90UBS|Xd S) 0 18k Yoes BulNP 3UOZ Y3 JO snjeA pasieidde pasnydes pajewnsa auy moys safed Buimoy|of ayL
—oSSoncd . eDPPOZI0'E ) . . ‘soged Buimo)|o)
—moa.gn_...d 00+2E0£0°0 S Eﬁﬁa‘qumumgmwxm.—.ﬁ.ﬁm— ; 8y} uo punoj aq ued 100} a1enbs Jad anjea sjqexe) pajedppue. sy pue 100} 21enbs 1ad sajes pajedionue
—uggo_....c. . . mFSmm:_v_— , 9y} ‘sa3e3004 v1enbs JusWIdojerdp PAIRdPIUE 9U] JO MBJAIING AlBLIWNS Y "siuswidojarap paulno Aisnoiaaid
B aSH Sersl ; S} U0 paseq aA1903l pINOM Z3j L, 8U} aNUSAD) Xey pajoadxa sy; paufwexs Apms ayy osfoid sy Jo Aaises)
- - Y
—Eanoc 0. . .. funon m._wnm_x— dltioueds ayy sulusiep o3 uejd Sujoueuy pue 308foid sy} Jo ued se padojeasp sem sisk|eue shiea sjgexe; v
‘oooeoooo L BfnsBuly jo Aol Aome £
— - wonediduey — C o xe) Apadosg _.m._om.mn_— - : PMS Aliliqisead ajwiouoag
, _oSSemnd , o —Sﬂvww_b.n ’ . 'SSaUPIIqOPU] papuog Aue Jnouj 1M ZHLL BU3 1YL SwWil SIY3 e payediojue 10U s{ )
fpooccono : Auoupnyg seep sexa) unos] 20J0155 1G0
00000000 . T asl ausstuny)
—ncncn,ou.c : . a._._:uo. Ewuw_.v_— . *3U0Z 8Y} UyIM Juawasou) Kadord |eas
fooonose o S0 apnsBupy jo Kol U} J0 %05 SINGUIUCD |im SIjIASBUIN JO A1 By} ‘oBed snojreid By uo peujRno syuswascidw) ofignd sy} puny of
| - uonediagied § B . SAEY £202 - xu] fradaoid ean) 14 zuiL

Bujoueuyy j0 poyialy

siskjeuy Ajljgiseay jerousuly



JudwIdoRg Jwouoaz
11113d aiAva

or

T# ZUlL 'veld Supueuly pue 1sford Aeupugalg

A E N T DT 32 T K RO A e D M AN MDA TR O AN

%959

“rye e
Z15'SELE ¥26°485°28.
- B - 9TVILY
- Vi Zve
£88°962° yee'aLr's
819'968'9 0SE'8¥S'Z

so00h

05¢'648'Z

+
+
+
+

IYHOSH3:

= B

i ALHISOM TR

uete %00 %99 %0003 .
TI356Ls Y P1'LIT0Z _ ST oo
- (2570 C svay . S| et HOTInY AIER SexeL Ginog
- ViiZore = yivzsve . § GS1 oNAuD|
TOREELE VeOLIS = vl §). Auns Eisgeni
6199609 0L360's s = GLUSEBIE. . § wiiiASBUD 3o Kig|

ANNIATY XVL TYLO]]

AAE3d08d TYRDSHYS: :

iNdino «

BT — T T T = e
Jo0066g 90°00Z - < 000°000" 00°00Z. Q00°0%

000002t 00002 - - - 000'002" 0000 000"

000085 00002 - - 900'009 00°00% 000’

000°008 00062 - - 000'008 00002 000

000'00Z G000z, - - 000°00% 00°002 - 005°E -

000’008t 00002 - - 000°00¢" 00°00Z 0059 - =

- - - ~ 000°005'F 00000GL__$ 09 ~ AT
000008 00°002 s ~ - $|.000°00¢" 00°00Z . 005'31 g L

0000000°0

G3605000 QST SHASBUDT

[ooootooe | Aunog Kreont

[Goooco0 0| 00000920 WiIASBUD: 10 KD
HONVAIDUYvVY I XV1 AL¥Fd0nd TvNoSaad)|

000008S°0
[oanocuso |

L
0

QS OIIASIUD)

0e0000'a

—funcg BRaeHT |

D0D00BED i

S{[IASBUR] 36 A0

L NOuvdiouuvd

XYL At¥IdoYd TvaY

) AT

20w INNOISIO

VY NOLLVTIN

1AdNI «

nduj Juswdojera( - sisAleuy AjIqisesS [eloueuly



wwdoinag &Eo:&m l. . 111
1i113d aiava . - ) - T# ZMIL ‘ueld w:_u__m:m pue joafoid Areupuijaig

DMl creis  osaers

g
H
§
g
i
:
;
i
i

. . - . - N : M - . - N - P - 2 M N - - - N - - N - - - . . ot
o L S T Y A S, ETHOH  GCUKD PO SN NOHON KT IWNED  SIWOH SIWOS LORGE OIS vy Mecs  arwie ewvest vt - - wn oppeses

r
e ALYV TrHOIVRY
L0 rws rp nre: wrn v

anavy ura aew wewy Hrn tra e wn ston i anr L

oo v L nros [ o e arn nen 22 wores sreg e wn o esy e Lo e
HITHIE BT NPNIRE GMEE ruvees oiIsEW caovien)

EOTE MY AW NN eI KRR eu

g

suopasfold SRUBALY XL

199ysyiom Juawidolens( - sishieuy Alliqisead |elousuly



Juawidopaaq Jwouodg f - t44
41113d giAava T# ZHIL ‘ueld mc_ucmcﬁ pue aom_.o‘_n_ meE:wE

LI SR lent et msn  eren |

S R R T Y L R L S
HM He 14 s- [N s R 5. t- 1 1 s N t- s Lucaony mwa tvee wreg
- HM 1 3 iz i i i: i i: i 1 i: i: i n. 1 H cseetdan
o d e § b § Towm fuwvo fwew doww fomu §mes Jaww fhum §wn. e biwe Sawm b H ety
™t TE =3 %

wurs ensrn
WNIZL SIS
BN RIS
rare

s OUDeRL RsTSrE

5 3 X % DGO ZNEMT  RUSNN TTE0IE  TNGONTL  DEMNZ  LTMIZI  RYSOZI - DVRTN QSN mveers,
oot ey DT iwewn gyl Giowl @O Dvwnn Zuedn DVewn Dumam  myentl  vewn  Bredn Biein  Loten hean e TYGOL IV TINTI EYENT
o oo avva ISVl aysell WYOSIl nUNil ZVIS  Mviwil Zvave eaen  Bress  avesh  mieln  Shen TIGAU  UTET 290U RIDT  LYNTIL  TIKIDL TIeNdl
TR DYV DVKR NN OV QYRSIL GYNT DNWYD BNeSTI  DYev  DveTr Gvewtl  Riewdl  Baewe vy Svann  Lhnn TINTI  TIKITI  RIKEL  LTeNTL @Al

noe o we oz [ g “w sor e it Rl
. “

,l)L,lm,n»r_ ot pa |

ey 2uva o3t
HLMOUO HvaA FTVR ATICVL

NOILVdIDILYVd 03S040Ud NO G3SVE SALLNIONI 'SINNIATY XVL ANV SINTVA AL¥ZOUd nmwOmoxn 40 LIVAW] TVHANID 40 SLVIRILLST

anuoAey Z41). psiedionuy - siskleuy Ayligiseay [eousuy



WadORAIQ JjUsou033 ’ 14
111134 aiava . T# ZYIL ‘ueld Suppueuly pue joofoid Lieujuiiaig

N 2 O G B S AP VN ST

R P S0 A oA LR AR RO S AT

(M Iiovior | weat | et onss oo '
Kamgrre s s oS BEVE S uwIS  f v *, poo

L ey ¥ s it s B MR T SR A o, mon e anu e eon e won e e o wes Kamen vy v e
Ao bl S LT Y HEE R ] HET AL $ian f homr 4 g f eam f wooor §oJerss ¢ meec f o s DO § Gse § hewic § s 8 dwgn ot § oo § wros 9 ey H st st
i o 4] Gl 3 ML sTm ¢ MR s N § 0T & STeN Wwne ¢ o 1 R..ﬁ “ u«ﬁ " mvﬂm “ "ﬁ u ﬁ# m ﬂ.ml-" u Hﬁ“u m m‘.».“ " Wﬂnﬂm u “-.n»“” “ Muwﬁ " ﬂ“ﬂ" s uﬂn- " mﬂm. n ”«H " ﬁm “ A D

"R R Y T 3 o WA 3 Wl 3 (23 [ T L] W R G = 3 3 ) L [ T

SIS T T TS R T 3 S
fepeofupey  fwvrz wTi e o WL MM o oW el erdies wven
o vern wEn
. : AT eVIR BT WWWE TN wives e wIWC WAz et G minr eear eew Wi sarw
BB R S S D R 4SRN L e 2N T A T3 Y (s Y2 R 11 90 L L L 5 T T T e et

A sowee s oo osise [ e Bmaent
LGt costNl  Surie v e tirss b

SiSYO'S 908089

omor  carast Boaammy
IEHTY WOTT  OONNT  ooveeT wzEL o srase Jsustony o o
LHOMUIN 2ATYA BTG VRVL
WYV v CITE% WSTSFIL ST ZzipesTL surn e v PR 0S
ST wwriT OUUSL WETSPIL  REHESL  Zieosst LG sprtud
WIOLTE  INVIVIT ORI SRTSIL  PCLESL  ZZioewl Sorpieel Brvany
TR e L TR Ty e wereat ety iy
BTVA TTRVRYL
TIml BRENU RYNIE  uYeNn BYEIT  RYCNI  UYKSN  RVSONT | RYSHII  uSesh mokol  Zeedl  Beest v nYern  niwsn oz Ry oy Jnap v oG
Trevel TNl ZEedl  DeeTt WYV LRVl VKNIl ZRARIl | DYGWYl  HVGTR DEenTl  nuedsl  Bveedt UTRU  RIROU  UIRET Tyt 1 VAN
TUNSTl  ZENE T69l  REEAIl BYEVU  TVMONT  DIVENTl BMmT  DOmsdl  LSOTT VNI DUl TRl KT TNt EOAmT TywIT ircwoy

T TN UTONITL  ZNENTE IOV TRWell  LVewdl  UeMEl  nvewzl  Iveorel Heardl et rYo T

oL e [l ™ [ " wor (3 e net 1oz [ e wee e o 3 oz xee [53 sooe oo et
" 3 o & 13 ® "7 L3 13 w ® “ " I " " " o n " " &

o0y BLvi 0%
XT HIMONO WYL RTVE TTaVXYL

NOLLVAIONUVYY Q3S0d0d NO QIsva SAILNIONI 'SANNTAIY XV ONY SFNTVA ALYTJOU GISOLOU 40 LOVJNT TYHINIO 40 SLVILLST

pejeIeuan anusAsy |y - SisAjeuy Anjiqises4 [elourul



Juawdopag Juouog
liLi3d Qiava

- v
. F# ZHIL ‘ueld Bujoueug pue 198fo1g Aeujwijaig

R S S SRS RS

S R R e e P P e R e Y

Awagqny
IDyEM SeX3] YInos I Aainy s91em sexa] yinos
astpasBupm astalmsiuym
Aunod S1aqap m ya5's5e'0T$ . fonea Bizgaiim obeszEss
ESL°0v98 05H'918'eTS
3 & AsBupizo ld
3{{ms3up o Ko m
auag 1aN pajelauag saxe) [ejo
[3 sejeg
988'651 €3 Auodaid jpay
e|liAsbu Jo Ao
suoyaIpsMnr Bujxe)
169°'5915ES 988657’ __£89'529'9¢9 1ejoL
£GL°0V88 0% "€SL0V9% . HOUINY Jojejp sexal yinog
6E9°'LYB'ZES 03 6e9'118°CLS Qs eliiasBuny
0bL'9ze'ss 0% .0vL'92e'6$ Aunog Biagapy
$95'958'0L5 989'65Y'ES 0Sir'918'els sjinsBuiy jo Ao
- uopedidjeq pojelous)
WousH 19N 2L, sexe), jeio) suopaIpsung Supxey

Aeunung enuoaoy

Aewwns - s|sfjeuy QJ[Iqisead jelousuly



Juawdornag Jwouo3g
1iL13d dlAva

“ued Bulaueuy pue 108foid s,0u07 au} o3 jeaosdde jeuy ang
40 lujewop JusujwL Jo 1aMod a3 3S|DIaXD

+589) 10 saxe) asodwy

‘spuoq anss|

10} pazuoyne
830U [lBYS pieog aYy] "apo) JUBUISA0Y Je007 ‘0gE Jeldel
Japun Ajiedistunw e jo stemod Bulpnjou; *apog Xel sexa) 8y}
40 TTe sa3deyd 4Aq 3} 01 pajuesd siemod |le oAy jleys pieog syl

1$103931|q1 JO pieOg JO SBINQ pUk SIaMog

(9502 ‘T s9qwerdes Aq patoejioa
3q 0} JuswWaioul Xe} s, 48K [BUl 0Y} UNM) HSOZ “TE Jaquiesaq
Uo puo 0} Pa|NPaYIs S| pue w3} 189k Og & sey ZylL 8yl

'SIESA UL 2# ZHIL Jo hiBuaq

Ti# ZHIL

st
‘uelq Fujoueuly pue jasford Areupuyjord

SUORIPUOY pUE Suila).



Juwdojnag Jwous3
11113d AlAva

oT -
T# 2411 ‘veld Sujpueuyy pue 199foag bm_.__E__oi

p122°0 ONOYLSIWHY N 2021 {14V YNITYAYS) "HOD MS DYTX00T 101 Z X008 ‘014 0711984 N3I49YIA|0T8TT
|essevotve o SIANYIYAD VINVS M 2L ’ TZ-02 107 ‘TI 0078 “1d GWVHO XIN NNV TAHIHO NMOHQ|¥8202
|2LLsp0TVE 0 QUVHOIY M F0L LSIYILNI QIAIAIGNN %08 6T-LT LOT ‘T 0018 'SLOH VLIFINTH TIVNYUYI VTIVHA|9L£6T
9EE869091'0 JAV TVHHOO M 019 Y/AS T/MZ/3 10T ‘TTHD018 OV 3931100 1N3138 NOT13a[serTz
£6V/S0TIE0 . FUNDSINMZTL ¥2-12 L0T°'T¥9018 ‘MIIA 3931100 NOWYH Zvd ¥130|S68E2
/265690970 3AY SITNHLY39 VINYS M¥2S 12 ‘02 101 2 M0078 “I1d AWVHD HHOIW ¥023634 VZ4VO v13d|L5The
6EZYPOTYT 0 AV SIANYLYID VINVS MOSS| 61-LT 10T 20014 “1d aWvHD v00343Y YZ4v9 V1 3G|€90ST
€LST6ETZE0 ONDIM 0TS aé_o\soQ JVT11av0) ‘VOZ 107 £%0078 ‘NAav SHooYd ONISI0IAYIS TVINIWNOHIANG 8 a|sezey
7£9669889'0 43AY M£09 v/AN LOT 'TT 30014 *OV 3931100 13INVA ZNYD|9008T
6PE198859'0 IAY TVHHOO MOSL (1YW GO04) 'v/MS LO1 ‘2T 0018 'OV 3931100 ONI LHYIN Q004 319v3 SNdHOD|esseT
696960502'0 SIANHIYID VINYS M L09 9T 40,885 M b1 ‘€T L0 ‘TH00714 ‘SLOH VLIIUNAH 0 OYilvY OOQYNOYOD|818be
L6ETT ONOYLSIWHY N bZeT {Ld W3 X3} '2€-€2 '9-1 107 720078 ‘MIIAIDITIOD HOYNHO 1SiLdva M3IA 3931100(87007
W20 QHYHOIM M 6ZL (S1dv) ‘€1 101 ‘¥ 10074 ‘S19H VLIINNAH QIAYA HIHJOLSIHHO|Z£08T
690662¢£2'0 JAVILINDSIW M PT9 ¥2-22 101 'ZTX0078 ‘MIIN 3931100 V VIQAN ZIAVHO([S0622
YY2LL8002'0 QUYHO M TEL € ‘1€ ‘08 Z/M 101 ‘T ¥0074 ‘SLOH VLIAINNIH 8Y(vy Q0TIVHO|96£9T
928990%2'0 SIANYLYIO VINVS M TTO ¢1-0T 107 ‘212078 ‘S19H VLIAIMNIH SIHHO NISONYID(92L8T
TSEEEG682°0 SIANYLYIO VINVS M ST9 (SLdv) '6-£ 1072 %0018 S19H VLIIMNIH SIMHO ¥ISONYID|besee
V665E8Z61°0 3AV SIANYLY3O YINVS M BTS LT .0TM 92 ‘ST 107 ‘£ 0078 “1d aWVHO QHYMA3 STWYT STTVHHYO[0TT8T
L1070 oHIAAMMb2L (2# 1dv IS0 WISAYD) ‘28-82 107 -2 %0014 ‘¥3d000 09VILNYS NLNvyD|oToze
£209°0 03IAVM8ZL {93V - S1dY 0OSIVr) 'Z/N 40 ,002M 40,003 ANV Z/S GLTM SZ3 L0 'Z ¥0018 0LV I 1SNY1319vI0AIY SANYIVO{EOPET
v1220 ONOYLSIWHY N 908 (Ld WIX3) '9T-€T 107 ‘TT N0 “Id GWVHD JHL 40 SINIOIY 40 GHvOsd|8sze
T18v/9866°0 VYOI M 622 (LdW3AX3) 'Ze-LZ *9-T 10T ‘THO019 MIINIOITIOD 3HL 40 SIN393H 40 QHY0g (61291
8ST869091°0 VITIMITL £°9107°TT 400719 “Id SWYHO 1.vd NasNY3g|(eLree
8188690910 VI3 ME0L S ‘v 107 “TT )20 “1d GWVHD 11vd NISNY3gpTLIT
960306802°0 JAV SIGNYIYAD VINVS M VTS 6¢ '8¢ 22 513 107410078 “1d SWVHO TIVO VANVM 3ZON3g{8/88T
STZ8r0THZ 0 ONOQYISIWYY N 02Z (Ld W3X3) '9T-FT LOTTTNO07TE “Id GWVHD HOYNHD 1S1)1dv8|sTSSe
99T222182'0 VTIIMTZL TL2/3°01-8 10T TT 0019 “1d GWVHI (1533417} ¥r 139Y YOa1va|2ezee
610280020 QUYHOIY M PTL 82¢/3°£2 '92 107 ‘T390 'S19H VLIIIINIH OT1 AVM Y SAYMIY|29zsT

|ezezeez 0 3LNDSIWMT09 61-£1 1012300178 ‘M3 31931100 HOLOIA OQVYVATY{T062T
€8L0TC8Y"0 ONI M 608 (3AY3S 73) ‘9T-TT 107 ‘810078 ‘SNO0YS OTIVNYS I1v{2806T
CTLESVOTYZ 0 19 SIANYLYID VINYS M 009 £2-12 107 0T %0078 “1d HWVYHD OT1Z9V|02oeT
LLV969091°0 JAV SIANYLYIO VINVS M 0Z9 0' STYOV 'SZ ‘vZ 107 ‘0T %0019 “1d AWVHD I 29v|9182C
T65VLE8ET0 SIANY1Y39 VINVS M'SZ9 (vZz1d SONROA)} '9-¥ 107 ‘2 X008 'SLOH YLIIINNIH OTzZov|eoeet
C1TZEGSST 0 3NV ALINDSIW M 0TS T2 '02 1012300718 ‘M3INT9ITI00 JYNIY VSSINVA SWYaV[TiTZe
£091°0 F0IY M ZEL Z€ 18101 ‘P 40014 ‘S1OH VLIZIHNIH 07113017V 1SIM E2/{8T62T

: -saa9y| : : uopdiiosaq esa|:

. SWENJBUMG| Q1 Augdold

dIHSYINMO ALHIdOYd INFHUND - V XIANIddY



«SE%.ES AWOU033
11113d diAva

A2
T# ZHIL ‘ueld Supueury pue 1afoid Aeujueld

6EFEYOTIC'D 3AY VTIHMEOL . £-11017 T10078 “1d GWYHD 0L4ITOU NODIUEO|09YTT |
9v8CL8002°0 JAYVTIIMSZL €1 'C1 "TT Z/M 101 ‘TT 10078 “Id SWVHO 0143904 NO934g0|09Lve
weo OHIGID M6EZL €-1107 'T-¥¥ 300174 ‘Y3d00D 3 TVANVY N3STIIN[esLeT
YPLI12LE2D SIANYLYID VINYS M 229 {S1dv} ‘€-T L0 ‘230078 'S1OH VLIIMNIH W OIZIgv4 OTTHHOLHYIW|BTC0T
GZESSST'0 119 3LNDSTW M 009 8¢ '£2 1011 ‘230079 'MIINTDITI0D 012148V OTIIHOLYYW|TG89T
9/5v90TTE'0 , JLNOSIW M 929 {S1dv) ‘2e-6Z 107 'TN0018 ‘MIAINIDITI0D O1ZIugvd 0T13HOLMYIN|S09/T
ST¥869091°0 $IaNY1Y¥39 VINYS M 209 ¢€ ‘1€107'01 20018 “1d SWYHD HOLOAH Z3NILYVYIN[80SLT
206VPOTYE 0 ONOUISWHY S T2T (OLVHO T3) ‘6141 L0 ‘£ 0078 'SY00Y " OLYIFWNH SINT ZANDYYIW[8E8PT
6ELV0SE08°0 19 ONIN M 008] - (013 "INVHNYLSTY SVIAAT) ‘0T-T 107 ‘8300719 ‘SHO0HS OT1 INFWIOYNVI TVINFY WIOHAWWOD S.NIHVIN|e£Z5T
90/£6909T°0 JAY SIANYIYIO VINYS M 60F , ¢T ‘ET107 2H2071d ‘NMOL 91O Hr{ 1NVd AANO[eorLt
SYESEETZE0 SIANYLYIO YINYS ME0Y|. (SAVO ALISYIAINN) ‘ST-ET 10T T H0018 ‘NMOL 9140 071 SINIWLISIANINOT|92z8T
20910 ONOHISIWHY N 60T (1d W3X3) (SS0¥O FHL) ‘BT.Z1 10T ‘€ 400718 ' 300D AINGOY 1H911[20rre
L6EVOTYT 0 QUYHOIM M 902 €2-02 10710019 ‘SL9H VLLIIMNIH _ d aTONYY v31|1582T
SOPEVOTIZ'0 SIANYLHIO VINYS M OTL $2-£¢.107 ‘TT %3018 "1d GWYHO SANV( TAVHOIW HIDINUN|8r0Te
ST62Y0TYT'0 SIANYLYID VINYS M 1L §2-92101 TT N304 “1d GWYHD 1 1AVHOIW H393NUMN [S6THT
VEBEEETZE D ‘SIANYLYIO YINVS M 90L ‘VOL ‘70 {LYWOUANNYT SYNVN) ‘2€-62 101 TE)30d “1d GWVHO [ T13VHOIW H393NW | T7Eee
88TSV0TYZ 0 ONDIM 0T . ¢2-02 101 ‘T-v¥ %0018 ‘434000 OT1SINIWLISIANI VISIUMN|Zv0ET
S959//198'T VHUOD M ¥0Z| ST'T S34OV ‘(S1dv 3T1IA3S) ‘2/3 101 TE X008 'OV 3931109 OTTSINTWISIANI ATIIWYAILINGK ITUASONDI[2828T
71280 ONOYISIWHY S TIT 91-£T 107240014 ‘Sooyd W 3IN39 SINOI|0EZET
TTEEVOTYC 0 61-£1 107 ‘TT %0074 “1d WYHD . XIN- AV ABYI|£€90Z
S65870TYE'0 SIANYIYIO VINYS METL (9NDIYYd 981) 'T1-6 107 ‘T %0018 ‘SLOH VLIIIMNIH JOYIWWOO 40 INVE TYNOLLYNYILNI[T842€
6E596ET2E0 SIGNYLLIAD VINYS M STL '8-5107 ‘I 30079 ‘SLOH VLIIIWNIH . A0HIWWOD 40 MNVE TYNOILYNYILNIILLTSE
SESTHOTYC 0 QYVHOIY M 9T/ §2-52 1071 %0018 ‘SL9H VLIAIENIH 4l WOLHALTYM HIINNH| /8022
BETIYOTYT 0 JAV SIANYLYID VINYS M 10S 2£-0€ 10123400749 “1d GWVHD NOHLYNO! DIYH|9E6TT
Y9Y180912°0 IVHHOI M TTO 21 ‘11 ‘0T 107 ‘TH00149 ‘M3IA 3937100 INIY 0QYYIVND|9250T
SEEOVLTON'O 3AY SIANHIY3O VINYS M 809 08-92 1071 ‘0T %0018 “1d BWYHD 1304 Z3TVZNOD (59582
6905r0TH2'0 SIANYLYIO VINVS M TEY €-1.107'2X0078 ‘'NMOLSIHO YOINVYS 4909[eL8eT
LZTSEETZE0 o ONIMMOES 28-62 107 210018 ‘SHo0Yd 11S3HN V970 % O3 lIo|TsveT
POVrvOTYZ 0 3AV SIANYLY3D VINYS M2eS 0" $FUOV Y2-22 1012030149 “1d GWYHI 0Quyna3 yzuyo|6eeve
9ETSETO9E™D - AV IVHHOI M T29 (S4394Ng 40 ISNOH IHOVIdYW) '6-6 LOT ‘210078 ‘MIIAIDATION VN3d VTALS3 VIHVIX VIOHYD|seere
v6/801882°0 WHYOO M TE9 v~T 1071 ‘2300148 ‘MIIA 3931109 HI OUVATY VIOHVS L0822
€6296ETTE0 JAV IVIHOI M 009 {HSYM YO ¥NOA) ‘'b/38 0013 107 T X009 ‘0¥ 3931100 NOSYW H31S04|T686T
LEV00LOST'0 ONIN MEOL 9T ‘ST 1071 'v-¥¥ 10014 ‘Y3d00D “OT13LY1S3 Tvad HAd|8LeoT
£8v01YC'0 ONII M L0 PT-CT 10T 7YY AD0TE ‘Y300 OT131V1S3 v3d Ha-|[880¢ET
£0996ET2E"0 ONMIMTITL (S1dv) ‘T1 ‘01 ‘6 ‘8 101 '¥-Vv D019 ‘434002 07131vV1S3 V3 Had|eeeze
L g " uopdpassq)esan). i 7 9eN 19umoy| -@j Muadord

dIHSHINMO ALYId0Ud INFHUND - V XIANIddY




JuawdoRAag Jwoue37

AilL13d diAva

8T
T# ZHIL ‘ueld mz_o:m_.__.._ pue 0901 bm:_E__mE

VOELYLSIT'E SIANYLYID VANYS M {(100HOS OLY13) 'Ze-T107 ‘990018 “1d SWVHO OHANYATY YZOOVUVZ|Trest
SY1S98Y88'C 18 JILLIN M 00V 1SYTIIM S0 /L B 26-T 107 ‘640078 “1d AIWVHD OHANYIATY YZOOVUYZ|FTSTE
TZ/S8ET2E0 SIANYLYID VINVS M 0£9 (01LvdvL 1) ‘02-L1-101 ‘0T 10078 “1d BWVHD OHANYIATY YZOOVUVZ|9661T
SECST650L0 ONOYLSWHY N 0TS P/MN 107 21300174 'OV 3931100| OT1SLNIWLSIANI 9WA|eee02
L/6T0E9IT'0 1SISTN6IY {S1dV) ‘9T ‘ST 40./8N 873 1072 ¥0018 ‘SLOH V.LIINIH TSINNIA NITIVA[2LS52
6/8EF1295°0 AV ONDI M 622 (HSYM YYD VIS3Id) Z-T 1071 ‘v-¥¥ 10018 ‘434000 %0103 SSILOMTNOSLVM|€2£0T
SOTE6VE08°0 M8 SIANYLIYAD VENYS M 005 . -97-07 107 ‘T X079 ‘NMOL OO YWI3AZINIA|3675007
908T0TZ8Y'0 W16'SIANYLYIS VINYS M 005 6-1 L0717 00178 'NMOL 91O VWTIAZIT3A| 06627
660£°0 22NDSIN M S22 0' SOV (Ld W3 X3) ‘0T-£ LOT PN00T8 ‘MIIAIOITIOD HOUNHO 1SI1dvd AUSHIAINA |vPeze
S98ELTOV0 ONIMO0EL (NMVd 73) ‘2€-82 101 “T-vV D079 ‘43d00D 0711 dZ3xL|vzzst
£091°0 V113 MBZL (Ld W3X3) ‘8T *ZT 107 2T 0079 “1d BWVHD WILSAS ALISHIAINN W ¥ SYX3L|¥82S5e
L8T°0 VINVM STL| (LdW3X3)‘9'S ‘v ¢/NLOTL0T TX00TE “1d NMYIGOOM WIISAS ALISHIAINN W B V SYX3L[00/9T
S0 VIAVM 12L {Ld W3X3) ‘e-T 107240076 “1d NMY1Q00M WILSAS ALISHIAINN W 2 V SYXIL[60€ET
815980110 31NOSIW M 00 (s1dv) ‘0z-£7 101 'T 3100178 ‘MAIAI9ITI00 071 W3ATOH SY)aL zv1|pecee
8/968202L°0 AV IVHHOO M LTL {LdW3X3) ‘9T~£ 10T THOOTE ‘MIIN3OITI00] NI G09S 40 SITWISSY-TIONNCO LOMISIA SYXAL HINOS|S158T
ZTIOr0TYe 0 SIANYIYID VINYS MSTY 01-8 107 ‘2%00174 ‘NMOL 980 YIJINNAT SILTOHS|882he
TT0EESSST 0 3LINOSIW M 819 92 'S¢ 101 ‘2N0078 'MAIA 393100 OANVI0Y SOTYVO YNY3S|£609T
eo OHIAI M 008 1267 107 ‘£ %0078 ‘2 431d00D 071 NOLLONYISNOD 0820652
€E98VTO0b"0 072 9V3LNS “SIaNY1Y39 YINVS M 60| (013 *H19 ALISHIAINN) *VeT 10T T X208 ‘NAGY SLHOIEH YLEMNIH W Y131 (QVIHYS |65
£L9E°0 ONOYISHHY N OTET (DINI ONINNYTA ATIWYH 8 A4ONNV SAVNIY) ‘'09TX00T HOJ/MN 101 Z %0078 OV I Y131 1avWYS{eL08T
£89ZVLT0H"D AAV ONIY M 818 (4OTHVd YZZId) '8Z-¥2 1071 £ %0079 ‘SHO0YE 071531143d0Yd Vivavs|serse
£SPEELTOV'D 18 ONI M 022 £2-6¢101'T-¥¥ 0019 '43d000| N3any zind|eszee
£45569091°0 QYYHOIH M 9ZZ] 08¢/3 ‘62 ‘82 2/M 107 ‘T 00718 *SLOH VLIIRINIH ZIANYNYIH OIAVLO0 NYQ10u[Tr09T
S€69V0TYC'0 STEMNLIT 61-L1 101 ‘T-v¥ 300174 ‘4340090 030V1 YNAZH|ESE6T
9E£B6909T'0 AV TVHHOI M 919 ¥/AS 0SM 10T ‘TT 12078 ‘OV 3931100 d YNVSNS ZIHIWYY|T12ze
98226/2Y9°0 JAY WHHOD M 089 PIMS 10711 %0078 *Ov 39371109 d YNVYSNS Z3HIWvY 82622
£€669889'0 J3AY M ST (S1dY ST13M ALISHIAINNT P/MN LOT T 0018 'OV 3931100 " dVNVSNS ZA4IWvH[T89eT -
29256909T°0 SIGNYLYID VINYS M E2h S ‘v 107 ‘2X0078 ‘NMOLOI¥0 4S 130Y 35S Z3MINYY |65/2T
25096309170 SIANYLYAD VINYS METY 0" SIHOV ‘£ '9 107 210078 'NMOL OIHO YS 1304 38831 MY |STSET
ZT20ESSST 0 _ 3UNDSINM9TL 92 '6Z 107 ‘110018 '‘MAIN 39371100 NIINY YNId[sTvse
Y90L6E12E0 SNOYLSWHY N 029 {43LN30 FHL/XIHI 4T/ WIHHS) 'b-T 1O T X0019 ‘SIOH VLLIENH VYANIHYIN 111vd|205eT
mgmammm 0 v_._m ,_SEOO M009 8 2 S._ ‘Z)0018 ‘MIINI93TI0D 1110¥d3d YOHOO|s82TT
Saidy| . ssa1ppy| LT :c_E:umon 1ega| ook ewen ssumol - grKuadosg

dIHSHINMO ALYIJOHd INFHHND - V XIANIddV




AGENDA ITEM #2




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING FOR THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT FOR PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING
SERVICES WITH UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY FOR THE ESCONDIDO RAIL
CROSSING PROJECT.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#47
Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

'Fund 001- General Fund

Expenditures — 5

1030 | City Special Professional Services 31400 $25,000

1030 | City Special | Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $25,000

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 23-24 budget to appropriate funding for the Reimbursement
Agreement for Preliminary Engineering Services with Union Pacific Railroad Company for the
Escondido Rail Crossing project. The funding will come from the General Fund Budget
Amendment Reserve line item. There is currently $237,000 available.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the |

extent of such conflict only.
.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.




\A

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 10th day of June 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 24th day of June 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary-Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




REGULAR AGENDA




AGENDA ITEM #3




City of Kingsville

Engineering Dept.
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer

DATE: June 10, 2024

SUBJECT:  Consider Ordinance to Reduce Speed along General Cavazos Boulevard (FM
1356) between 6t Street (Bus 77) and US 77.

Summary:
On May 30, 2024, the city received a letter from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT)

| requesting to lower the speed limit between 6% Street (BUS 77) and US 77 from 45 mph to 35
mph. The area impacted is located inside the TXDOT ROW and the City Limits, serving 1.3 miles.

Background:
TxDOT recently completed a speed study along General Cavazos Boulevard (FM 1356) between 6%

Street (BUS 77) and US 77. While the 85" percentile of motorists travel at the posted speed limit
of 45 mph, the area has experienced several crashes, including fatality, and high density of
driveways in both commercial and residential areas. Based on the accident data between 2019 and
2023, there have been several accidents including fatality, injuries, and hit/runs, as shown in the
exhibit. The area experiences high traffic volume due to the presence of a hospital, funeral home,
high school, shopping centers, restaurants, proposed new fire station, apartments, church, home
improvement and grocery stores.

Financial Impact:
No Impact.

Recommendation:
Staff recommendations approving this ordinance change to reduce the speed limit from 45 mph to
35 mph along General Cavazos Boulevard (FM 1356) between 6% Street (BUS 77) and US 77.

Attachments:
TXDOT Letter — Speed Reduction
Crash Data Exhibit




COK - 5 Year Crash Data (2019-2023) on E Gen. Cavazos Blvd

2024

y

AMAYA [ June 4th

G.

cian -

i

| GIS Techn

t.

Dep

ineering

gl

Traffic Accident, Fatal

COK En

Traffic Accident, Injury

Hit/Run, Injury
| Crash Data Area Of Interest ||

_H_ Ownership

- Streets

by:

Drawn




‘S'L'N

LIgIHX3 NOIS LINM d33dS \_L_/

‘!QJ}J

=3
5
e
)
3

Scale: AS NOTED

. J
Drawn by: J. RAMIREZ E{] CITY OF KINGSVILLE
® CITY OF KINGSVILLE Dot 0-16-2024 crry B 7 | ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
F e v
T Checked by: R. MORA osyille| «owes king
. Kingsville, 78363
— SPEED LIMIT SIGN EXHIBIT Job: Offe 361,554 3007

Fax 361.595.8035




DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F9948E5-6C25-4490-A094-F38018E685CA

=" 125 E 11th St | Austin, Texas 78701
T roxas 512.463.8588

Department
f Transportation tX d ot. g oV

June 11, 2024

The Honorable Sam Fugate
Mayor of Kingsville, TX
400 W. King Avenue
Kingsville, TX 78363

Dear Mayor Fugate,

My name is America B. Garza, Transportation Engineer Supervisor, at the Texas
Department of Transportation (TxDOT) - Corpus Christi District.

We recently conducted a speed study along FM1356, General Cavazos, beginning at
BU77 East to E of US77 for a total of 1.331 miles. As a result, the 85th percentile
shows that most of the traveling public is driving the posted speed limit of 45mph in
both directions.

However, TXxDOT is recommending reducing the speed limit based on the following
factors: crashes and high driveway density in commercial and residential areas. We
are kindly requesting that the City of Kingsville pass a city ordinance to reduce the .
speed within this roadway segment described below:

o That a 35mph zone be established by the city from BU77 East‘to
approximately 170 ft E US77 for a total of 1.331 miles (figure 1).

If the City of Kingsville concurs with our proposal, please secure city action and
return two copies of the city ordinance to our office. Once we have the city
ordinance, we will schedule sign installations with the lowered speed limit.

I have attached a map for your reference of the area described. If you have any
questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me at (361)
808-2490.

Respectfully,
DocuSigned by:
93EB32D69A7DACB...
America B. Garza, P.E.
Transportation Engineer Supervisor
Corpus Christi District-Traffic Engineering Dept.
361-808-2490
America.Garza@txdot.gov

Connecting You with Texas
An Equal Opportunity Employer




DocuSign Envelope ID: O0F9948E5-6C25-4490-A094-F38018E685CA

The Honorable Sam Fugate 2 Date

| FM1356 ’ |
Propose 35mph X & 35mph - Proposed

_ e iR : ‘ ‘ 2 ’ o) 5 24 & 45mph -Existing

Figure 1: FM1356 (General Cavazos) Proposed Speed Limit

Connecting You with Texas
An Equal Opportunity Employer




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AMENDING THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER
VIl, ARTICLE 5-TRAFFIC SCHEDULES, SCHEDULE | (D), REVISING THE
SPEED LIMIT ON CERTAIN AREAS OF GENERAL CAVAZOS BOULEVARD
(FM 1356); PROVIDING FOR APPROPRIATE PENALTIES, FINES, AND FEES
REGARDING THE REGULATION THEREOF; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is responsible for
the construction, maintenance, and traffic control on the roadway in question,
General Cavazos Blvd., also known as FM1356, (“the road” or “the roadway”);
and

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville approved Resolution
#2024-08 on January 22, 2024 supporting a speed study on General Cavazos
Blvd. from the US 77 By-Pass to US 77 Business; and

WHEREAS, the roadway in question is owned by TxDOT who advises, via a
letter dated June 11, 2024, that they conducted a traffic/speed study earlier this
year on that road and want to reduce the speed limit on 1.331 miles of the road
from the U.S. Highway 77 (By-Pass) to the intersection with U.S. 77 Business
(also known as 6" Street) from 45 mph to 35 mph; and

WHEREAS, TxDOT advised the City that they are recommending the speed limit
reduction based on the following factors: crashes and high driveway density in
commercial and residential areas and kindly request the City of Kingsville to pass
a city ordinance to reduce the speed within the roadway segment as described
above and in the ordinance attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, other revisions to the ordinance regarding the speed limit on this
roadway are needed to ensure the signage and ordinance are consistent.

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is necessary to protect the public safety, health, and
welfare of the City of Kingsuville. '

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:




THAT Schedule | (D) of Article 5: Traffic Schedules of Chapter VII, Traffic Code,
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Kingsville, Texas, shall be amended to
read as follows:

§ 7-5 SCHEDULE I: SPEED LIMITS.

(D) F.M. Highway No. 1356.

Street ‘ Location Speed Ord. Date
Limit No. Passed

F.M. Highway Beghmﬂﬂag—act—’r:he—1ﬂ{eefseet&eﬂ-ef—U—Sr—Ji 45 mph | 83015 | 4-18-83
No. 1356 Hishway 77-Business)-and-General

.S Hishwav-77 By l)mm\1
\J ALY .’ A Y

L= = > ¥

A
Begmmng at a pomt appr.oxmlately;
170 ft east of U.S. Highway 77 (By-
Pass) to the eastern city limits

F.M. Highway | Beginning at the intersection of‘ 35 mph - -
No. 1356 Business U.S. Highway 77 goin g

east to approximately 170 ft east of
U.S. Highway 77 (By-Pass) fori

total of 1.331 miles Begimﬁg—at

}E;.il ';;17 Busi 'K" ‘ ‘.H'FJ
F.M. Highway | From a—pemt—Z—é%S—mﬂes—west—ef 4539 | 83015 | 4-18-83
No. 1356 Business U.S. Highway 77 (By-Pass) | mph

to the intersection with West Caesar,

IAve. ArmstronsSt) in Kingsville
F.M. Highway | From the intersection with West 30 mph

No. 1356 Caesar Ave. to the intersection with
Armstrong St. in Kingsville

('62 Code, § 10-4-7)

Penalty, see §1-1-99.




THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word
or provision of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section,
paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it
is the definite intent of this City Commission that every section, paragraph,
subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given full force and

effect for its purpose.
V.

THAT this Ordinance shall be codified and become effective on and after
adoption and publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 24" day of June, 2024.
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 8t" day of July, 2024.

Effective:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




AGENDA ITEM #4




Kingsville Parks & Recreation @ For Information on events and facilities
Sy www.cityofkingsville.com/department/parks

400 W. King (mailing) CITY p=g ~= 7 L
501 Santiago Park Lane (physical) w7, OF W "/ Email:
Kingsville, Texas 78363 g ﬁ £ sivy@cityofkingsville.com
361-221-8705 £ ) J){ or follow us on Facebook
Susan lvy, Director . w AN ;o Kingsville Parks and Recreation
361-219-9125 s

To:  Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
From: Susan lvy, Director of Parks & Recreation
Date: June 18, 2024

Summary: Approve Resolution in support of the submission to the National Fish and Wildlife
Foundation’s National Coastal Resilience Fund Award by the Harte Research Institute for Gulf of

Mexico Studies.

Request: We are asking Commission to approve a Resolution in support of the submission to the
National Fish and Wildlife Foundation’s National Coastal Resilience Fund Award titled “Developing
Nature Based Designs to Increase Resilience and Habitat in the Baffin Bay Watershed (TX)” by the
Harte Research Institute for Gulf of Mexico Studies.

History: This grant will look at possible assistance to Kingsville and Kleberg County in assessment and
preliminary designs for nature-based solutions to mitigate flooding and erosion, enhance public
greenspace and wildlife habitat, and improve water quality in Kleberg County, the City of Kingsville
and the downstream Baffin Bay ecosystem.

Financial Impact: None at this time. While this project will not require any funding at this time, after
assessments and planning are completed and projects are identified funding would be discussed
between a variety of entities that would be partnering with these projects.

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Resolution attached.




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS IN SUPPORT OF
THE SUBMISSION TO THE NATIONAL FISH AND WILDLIFE FOUNDATION’S
NATIONAL COASTAL RESILIENCE FUND AWARD TITLED “DEVELOPING
NATURE-BASED DESIGNS TO INCREASE RESILIENCE AND HABITAT IN
THE BAFFIN BAY WATERSHED (TX)” .

WHEREAS, the Baffin Bay watershed, including Kleberg County and the City of
Kingsville, is naturally prone to flooding from high-intensity rain events; and;

WHEREAS, stormwater runoff and flooding pose threats to human health, critical
infrastructure, community resilience, and water quality in Baffin Bay; and;

WHEREAS, Baffin Bay contribute >$75 million annually to the local economy
through fishing and outdoor recreational activities that it provides; and;

WHEREAS, nature-based solutions encompass natural, engineered, and hybrid
approaches that can strategically protect, restore, sustainably manage, or mimic
natural ecosystems, and can reduce community exposure to natural hazards
while enhancing habitats for fish and wildlife; and;

WHEREAS, the proposed project “Developing Nature-Based Designs to Increase
Resilience and Habitat in the Baffin Bay Watershed (TX)” will conduct site
assessments and preliminary (30-60%) designs for nature-based solutions to
mitigate flooding and erosion, enhance public greenspace and wildlife habitat,
and improve water quality in Kleberg County, the City of Kingsville, and the
downstream Baffin Bay ecosystem; and;

WHEREAS, the proposed project will involve extensive community engagement
to identify suitable project sites within the Kleberg County and the City of
Kingsville for nature-based solutions, and will develop preliminary engineering
designs that meet community needs and preferences; and;

WHEREAS, this project proposal is led by the Harte Research Institute for Gulf of
Mexico Studies, in collaboration with the Gulf of Mexico Trust, the Baffin Bay
Stakeholder Group, the Coastal Bend Bays & Estuaries Program, and Clean
Coast Texas; and;

WHEREAS, the proposed designs and their future implementation will serve as a
template for broader adoption of nature-based solutions throughout the
watershed and region, fostering long-term sustainability and resilience.




NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KINGSVILLE CITY
COMMISSION:

THAT the City of Kingsville, acting through its governing body, hereby fully
supports and endorses the project proposal “Developing Nature-Based Designs
to Increase Resilience and Habitat in the Baffin Bay Watershed (TX)". The City of
Kingsville recognizes the importance of this initiative for enhancing community
resilience, creating habitat, and improving water quality.

THAT the City of Kingsville, acting through its governing body, hereby commits to
collaborating with the Harte Research Institute, project partners, and community
stakeholders to ensure the successful completion of the proposed project. The
City of Kingsville will actively participate in community engagement activities to
facilitate project objectives.; and

THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on or after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 24th day of June 2024.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




AGENDA ITEM #5




For Information on events and facilities
www.cityofkingsville.com/department/parks
Email:

sivy@cityofkingsville.com

or follow us on Facebook

Kingsville Parks and Recreation

Kingsville Parks & Recreation
400 W. King (mailing)

501 Santiago Park Lane (physical)
Kingsville, Texas 78363
361-221-8705

Susan lvy, Director

361-219-9125

To: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
From: Susan lvy, Director of Parks & Recreation
-Date: May 30, 2024
Subject: Agenda Request to approve Budget Amendment for additional funds for

vehicle/equipment maintenance
3k ok 3k ok 2k ok 2k ok 3k ok 3k 2k 3k 2k 3k ok ok ok sk sk sk 3k sk 3k ok sk sk ok 3k sk 3k sk ok 3k ok 3k ok ok ok ok 3k 3k ok ok ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok ok 3k sk 3k sk sk 3K ok 3k ok sk ok ke ok ke sk e oK ofe 3k ok ok ok e e sk ke k¢

Request: We are asking City Commission to approve a budget amendment in the amount of $6,000
to provide additional funding for vehicle and equipment maintenance for our Parks Maintenance
Division.

History: The vehicle inventory for Parks Maintenance including the Van that our Rec staff uses
are all very old and continually in the shop over and over again. We have inherited 3 trucks this
year with all 3 going to the shop within 2 months of getting them with costly repairs. Our van has
been in the shop numerous times. We have already shorted our other line items twice to move
$5,000 into vehicle maintenance already. About $3,000 came from equipment maintenance. This
is high mowing season, lots of tournaments coming this summer will likely need equipment
repair in the next 4 months with very little left in that line item.

Financial Impact: This will add $4,000 to line item 001-5-4503-41100(vehicle maintenance) and
$2,000 to 001-5-4503-41400 (equipment maintenance).

Action: We ask that Commission approve the attached Budget Amendment.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET TO PROVIDE
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR PARKS VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#49

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number | Increase Decrease

Fund 001 — General Fund

Expenditures — 5

4503 | Park Maint Vehicle Maintenance 41100 $4,000
4503 | Park Maint Equipment Maintenance 41400 $2,000
1030 | City Special | Budget Amendment Reserve 86000 $6,000

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 23-24 budget to provide additional funding for Parks Vehicle
and Equipment Maintenance. Funding for this request will come from the General Fund Budget
Amendment Reserve line item. Currently there is $110,103 available.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the

extent of such conflict only.
M.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.




V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 24th day of June 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 8th day of July 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




AGENDA ITEM #6




City of Kingsville
Finance Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Deborah Balli, Finance Director

DATE: June 18, 2024

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment #48 — Adjust Current Budget for Audited Beginning Fund
Balances

Summary: .

Each year’s budget is based on the estimated ending fund balances for the prior year. Once the
audit is completed, our beginning fund balances need to be validated against what is currently
budgeted for current year revenues and expenditures. Budget Amendment #48 is the result of

this validation.

Financial Impact:
With the exception of Fund 051, all funds included in the budget amendment are reductions to
budget and do not have any financial impacts. Fund 051’s transfer to Fund 054 could not be
reduced resulting in the need to fund this transfer from the Utility Fund Budget Amendment
Reserve line item.

Recommendation:

Staff recomme

nds the approval of this budget amendment.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET TO ADJUST
BUDGETS BASED ON AUDITED BEGINNING FUND BALANCES FOR FY 23-24.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KIN'GSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
'BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#48

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget

No. Number Increase Decrease
‘Fund 033 - CO Series 2016 : : 5 ‘
Expenditures — 5
6900 | Transfer Out | Transfer to Fund 206 80206 $5,554.05 p(

Reven '
0000 | Transfer In Transfer from Fund 033 75033 $5,554.05 @

Expenditures - 5
4503 | Parks Grounds & Perm Fixt 59100 $19,204.05 (‘,

Revenues - 4
2100 | Police Federal Grant 72005 $76,862.78 'D

Expenditures - 5 _
2100 | Police Overtime 11227 $11,154.75
2100 | Police Motor Gas & Oil 21500 $256.03

N

Expenditures - 5 _
6900 | Transfer Out | Transfer to Fund 054 80054 | $37,548.95 | (=
7001 | WW Budget Amend Reserve | _ 86000 $37,548.95 | [t

1




Dept
No.

Dept Name

Account Name

Account
Number

Budget
Increase

Budget
Decrease

 Fund 054 — UF Capital Projects

Revenues - 4

_ 0000 | Transfer In

| Transfer from Fund 051

75010 | $37,548.95

itures - 5

53100

“\

$9,303.51

Street

Park Maint

$1.090.50

Revenues - 4

_Fund 094 — TPW Gral

0000 | Non Dept | Federal Grants 72005 $2,977.96 |L-

Expenditures - 5

4503 | Parks Maint | Grounds & Perm Fixt 59100 $29,638.21 M
Expenditures - 5 ‘

6001 | Water Dept YE Reduction 85000 $511,000.00 > ,\[
6900 | Transfer Out | Transfer to Fund 121 80121 $588,800.00

Revenues - 4

$588,800.00 | O

0000 | 75125 Trsf From Fund 125 75125
Expenditures - 5
1030 | City Special | Professional Services 31400 $3,407.03 N\ p
1603 | Planning Professional Services 31400 $15,092.97
4503 | Parks Dick Kleberg Park 59113 $.50
d 128 — TWDB Drainage

bi'ainaugvéh

Drainsge-Loan

71600

$29.098.19 | Q

- CO Series 2023 UF.

Utility Plant

5400

$1 140,358.77

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 23-24 budget to adjust budgets based on audited beginning
fund balances for FY 23-24. There is no financial impact on Funds 033, 206, 068, 093, 094,

2




125, 121, 128,141 and 206 as these budgets are being reduced. For Fund 016, this a clean
up to adjust the budget for grant funding that has already been received. For Fund 051, the
transfer from Fund 051 to Fund 054 needs to still happen and will be funded through the Utility
Fund Budget Amendment Reserve line item.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the

extent of such conflict only.
‘ Il

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 24th day of June 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 8th day of July 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




Fund Balance FY ending 09/30/2023 - Audited

N“ww“ Budgeted Budget Budgeted Budget cﬂm“.mwn
Fund Fund Name . Current Amendment Current Amendment .
Beginning Fund . Ending Fund
Revenues BA#48 Expenditures BA #48
Balance Balance
) ,732,530.18| 23,229,642.83| 25,652.575.78] 309,597.23

Tourism 659,262.00 630,639.00
005 |PD StSeizure : ‘ 53,131.00 399,486.02
009 |Law Enforce-PD 6,705.88 '6,705.88
011 |GO Debt Service 2,264,984.00 2,152,727.00
012  |UF Debt Service 2,251,355.00] o\ A 2,055,563.00
016  |PD Stonegarden 99,514.00| ¥ 76,862.78 164,966.00
017 PD Local Borderstar 78,000.00 78,000.00
019 |PDJAG Grant 0.00 0.00
025 |Bldg Security 13,350.00 9,000.00
026 |Golf Cap Maint 13,568.00 64,468.95
028  |PD Fed Seizure 128.00 30,000.00
031 |MC Technology .. 37,314.05 11,489.00 7,800.00
033 |C0O2016 . 17,357.42 0.00 22,911.47
051 |Utility | 5,465,906.60] 10,772,406.00| _ 11,935,069.12
054 |UFCapProj : 66,249.00| }- 37,548.95 291,985.00
055 |Stormwater 423,724.00 1,051,790.00
059 |Homeland Security 0.00 : 0.00
062 |CO 2005 0.00 50,000.00
066 |CO2011 316.00 6,000.00
068 |CO 2013-Drainage 33,708.88 729,600.00
083 CJD of Gov Grant 0.00 0.00
084 |DEAAG 0.00 500,000.00
087 |SW Cap Project 590,485.00 597,686.17
090 |Landfill Closure 366,906.17 479,085.00
091 GF Cap Project 0.00 0.00
092 |Street 1,069,126.00 1,319,329.34
093 Park Maintenance 29,503.00 57,000.00
094  |TX Parks Wildlife 55,209.00| v 2,977.96 87,825.17 ,
097 |Veh Replac-Fire 45,000.00 68,000.00 192,627.89




Fund Balance FY ending 09/30/2023 - Audited

FY 23-24 FY 22-23
) Budgeted Budget Budgeted Budget i
v Audited Unaudited
Fund Fund Name . Current Amendment Current Amendment i
Beginning Fund ) Ending Fund
Revenues BA#48 Expenditures BA #48

Balance Balance

098 Economic Devel 183,167.27| 423,100.00 . 361,969.00

100  |SRTS Grant 61,682.10 0.00 0.00

101 |[TXCDBG 7219192 . 0.00 0.00 0.00

105 |veh Replace-PD " 0.00 10,000.00 . 0.00

106 |Veh Replace-PW | 58,223.37 100,000.00 144,820.00

107  |Assistto FF Grant 0,00 0.00 0.00

108  |PL Bulletproof Vst S 20210.00 0.00 0.00

110  |KVPD Enhan BWC - 0.00 0.00 0.00

113 |cwww Coll Syst | = 87,348.63] 4,857,891.00 4,858,294.00

114  [SWB Rural/Tribal 0.00 0.00

115  [Tax Notes 2021 0.00 147,411.14

116  |TWDB Drainage #7 : 1,245,930.00 1,245,930.00

117  |TWDB Drainage #1 . 712,332.68 1,245,576.00 1,245,576.00

118  |TWDB Drainage #3 . 763,080.36|  1,337,946.00 1,337,946.000 | 763,08
119  |TWDB Drainage #4 | 966,646.83]  1,712,043.00 1,712,043.00

120  |Prop Tax Reserve . 432,231.49 0.00| A 0.00{ o

121 |GF ARP-deferred rev 1,613,347.85 588,800.00| (588,800.00)]  1,630,859.35 ¥ (18,499.50)
122 |GLO Mitigation -~ 366,787.00| 33,859,114.00 : 33,859,114.00

123  |ED Program-defrev - 270,000:47 0.00 270,000.47

124 |Ed Rachal Found-PD : 352.6 0.00 0.00 |t

125 {UF ARP SL-Def Rev 0.00 1,599,800.00['(1,099,800.00)
126 GF Tax Note 2022 0.00 . 1,425.00

127  |UFTax Notes 2022 _‘ ‘ 0.00 0.00] .,

128 |TWDB Drainage #8 . 347,001.81 301,500.00 678,500.00 [X (29,998.19)
129  |TXSWS Mobile Gen 7,728.00 0.00 0.00

130 - |TXSWS Backup Gen 8,894.00 106,106.00 0.00

131 |TASAGrant 0,00 0.00 0.00

132 PID-Somerset FD - o H.c,.ucm,_ 0.00 0.00

138 |Insurance ©2,782,171.30]  4,273,317.00 4,579,477.00

139  {Veh Replace-PW-GF |  35261.32 10,000.00 0.00




Fund Balance FY ending 09/30/2023 - Audited

FY 23-24 FY 22-23
i Budgeted Budget Budgeted Budget .
Audited Unaudited
Fund Fund Name . Current Amendment Current Amendment .
Beginning Fund ] Ending Fund
Revenues BA#48 Expenditures BA #48
Balance . Balance
140  |Ed Rachal Found-Pks , 10.00] £ 0.00 0.00 |,
141  |CO Series 2023-UF )1.7: 0.00 2,560,650.50 | (1,140,358.77)
151 CO Series 2023A-GF 4,865,110.18 4,865,110.18
153 CO Series 2024-Fire 7,000.00 7,000.00
202 Fagade Grant 0.00 0.00
203 JKEDA Grant 0.00 557,000.00
205 Tourism ARP-Def Rev 0.00 @ 91,709.72{
206 . |Chamberlain Park 458,660.39|</ (5,554.05) 472,310.39 &7 (19,204.05)
208 Lone Star Grant 336,106.10 : 336,106.10
Totals 41,810,947.74 97,871,962.43 (476,964.36) 111,011,264.75 (2,342,036.00) 30,536,717.06

30,536,717.06



AGENDA ITEM #7




CITY =7
YW 7 OF K
© 8 ﬁﬁe City of Kingsville
i Finance Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

cC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Deborah Balli, Finance Director

DATE: June 18, 2024

SUBIJECT: Budget Amendment #49 — HRSA CARES Provider Relief Fund Payback

Summary:
In FY 19-20, the Fire Department applied and received a $12,922.95 grant from the HRSA CARES
Provider Relief fund. This timeframe was around the time that there was a change in the Fire
Chief position. We received notification in early March 2023 about the reporting issue with this
grant and the former Accounting Manager completed and submitted an appeal through their
process for non-compliance reporting website link. During that time the current Fire Chief
reached out to the former Fire Marshall, who had the responsibility to file the reports on this
grant, to see if he knew where any files were concerning this grant and none could be located.

Financial Impact:
Since all reporting time periods have expired, we are required to send these funds back to the
granting agency.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the approval of this budget amendment.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET TO PROVIDE
FUNDING FOR PAYBACK OF THE HRSA CARES PROVIDER RELIEF FUND DUE TO
NON-SUBMITTAL OF REPORTS.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#50

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 001 - General Fund

Expenditures — 5

2200 | Fire Professional Services 31400 $12,922.95

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 23-24 budget to provide funding for the payback of the
HRSA Cares Provider Relief Fund due to non-reporting. Funding for this request will come
from the General Fund Budget Amendment Reserve line item. Currently there is $104,103

available.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the

extent of such conflict only.
Ml

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.




V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 24th day of June 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 8th day of July 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

- Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




AGENDA ITEM #8




Planning and Development Services
410 W King

Kingsville, TX 78363

PH: 361-595-8093

MEMO

Date: June 13', 2024
To: Mark McLaughlin (City Manager)
From: Erik Spitzer (Director of Planning and Development Services)

| Subject: REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR A TEXAS GENERAL LAND
OFFICE (GLO) GRANT TO PROVIDE SERVICES FOR THE CITY TO COMPLETE
THE OUTDATED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (LAND USE)

Summary: The City’s Comprehensive Master Plan for land use is due to be updated and a grant opportunity
exists to cover the expense of the consultant who could perform that project, so staff requests authonty to apply
for a grant for that purpose.

Background: The City of Kingsville has an outdated Comprehensive Plan, last published in 2008. A
Comprehensive Plan is a 20 to 30-year framework designed to help guide future developments and land use
within a city.

The 2022 Resilient Communities Program (with $100 million available) is accepting applications to help fund
the development, adoption, and implementation of long-range planning for cities. Applications will be
processed for eligibility on a first come, first served basis until June 1st, 2028, or until funding is exhausted,
whichever comes first.

The City of Kingsville qualifies for this funding due to the 2015/2016 floods.

This program is a great opportunity for the City of Kingsville to receive funding (without match) from GLO to
develop a Comprehensive Plan. The maximum amount for each applicant is $300,000, with funds available to
procure grant writing, grant admin, as well as planning services.

Financial Impact: None.

Recommendation: Staff recommends the City Commission authorize the City Manager to apply for a GLO
Resilient Communities Program Grant to secure funding for a new Comprehensive Master Plan.




RESOLUTION #2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS,
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A RESILIENT COMMUNITIES PROGRAM
(RCP) GRANT APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE FOR
FUNDING FOR A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (LAND USE) AND AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER TO ACT AS THE CITY'S EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE CITY'S
PARTICIPATION IN THE RCP GRANT.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville (“City”) desires to develop a viable community, including
decent housing and a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities;
and

WHEREAS, the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan for land use was last updated and
approved in 2008; and

WHEREAS, a Comprehensive Master Plan is designed to help guide future
developments and land use within a city; and

WHEREAS, failure to have an updated Comprehensive Master Plan can create
conditions which represent a threat to the public health, safety, and welfare; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the citizens of the City of Kingsville
to apply to the Texas General Land Office (“GLO”) Resilient Communities Program
(“RCP”) to seek funding for a new Comprehensive Master Plan for the City of Kingsville;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS:

1. That an application is hereby authorized to be filed with the Texas General Land
Office for funding consideration under the Resilient Communities Program.

2. That the application be for $300,000 of grant funds to hire a consultant to prepare a
Comprehensive Master Plan for land use within the City of Kingsville, Texas for
eligible activities. No match for the cost of this project is required.

3. That the Mayor and City Manager are designated as the Chief Executive Officers
and Authorized Representatives to act in all matters in connection with this
application and participation in the GLO RCP Grant.

4. That the Mayor and City Manager are designated to oversee all grant activities so
as to ensure there are no Conflicts of Interest.

5. That all funds will be used in accordance with all applicable federal, state, local and
programmatic requirements including but not limited to procurement, environmental
review, labor standards, real property acquisition, and civil rights requirements.

6. That this resolution shall be and become effective on or after adoption.




PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the_24th day
of June, 2024.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




AGENDA ITEM #9




Planning and Development Services
410 W King

Kingsville, TX 78363

PH: 361-595-8093

MEMO

Date: June 13™, 2024
To: Mark McLaughlin (City Manager)
From: Erik Spitzer (Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: REVISIONS TO EXISTING SIDEWALK ORDINANCES

Summary: Staff has observed the need to update the existing sidewalk ordinance to provide guidance on
instances when construction of a sidewalk is currently required but doing so is not feasible or practical.

Background: On January 29", 2024, the City Manager asked the City Engineer and the City Planner to
examine the existing City of Kingsville ordinances that pertain to mandatory sidewalk construction within the
city limits. Of concern was the current ordinance wording that does not address areas where sidewalk
installation would not be feasible (due to the inability to install in existing rights-of-ways), nor make sense if the
existing neighborhood had no existing sidewalk infrastructure.

The following additional language is proposed for Commission approval to incorporate in three current sections
within the City of Kingsville ordinances:

“Exceptions: if no sidewalks exist in an area (such as an entire neighborhood), then sidewalk construction is
not required; however, if future growth within an area is possible, then sidewalk construction is required. Also,
if sidewalk construction won’t fit within the existing right-of-way, then sidewalk construction is not required.
In all cases, exceptions/waivers will be granted only by approval of the City of Kingsville Director of
Planning.”

Those two separate sections within the ordinances include:

* Sec. 9-10-1 - Construction of sidewalks
* Sec. 9-10-4 - Restricted construction; alteration; sidewalks and driveways required

Financial Impact: None.

Recommendation: Staff recommends the City Commission approve the suggested amendments to the sidewalk
ordinance.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AMENDING THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES SECTIONS
15-3-51 AND 9-10-1 THROUGH 9-10-5, PROVIDING FOR REVISIONS TO THE
SIDEWALK REGULATIONS; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT
HEREWITH AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND
PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is necessary to protect the public safety, health, and
welfare of the City of Kingsville;

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the sidewalk ordinances are in need of
revision due to changes sections that apply to areas of land where it is either not
feasible or not practical to require a sidewalk;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:

THAT Article 6: Zoning of Chapter XV, Land Usage, of the Code: of Ordinances
of the City of Kingsville, Texas, Sections 15-3-51 and 9-10-1 through 9-10-5 shall
be amended to read as follows:

§ 15-3-561 Sidewalks.

A concrete walk at least five feet in width and four inches thick shall be provided
continuously on both sides of each street for each block in the subdivision. This
standard shall be considered a minimum and may be increased at the
discretion of the Director of Public Works for areas adjacent to or in the vicinity
of schools, parks and other locations with significant pedestrian traffic. In the
case of a high pedestrian traffic area, sidewalk widths may be required to be a
minimum of 8-10 feet depending on the application. The sidewalk shall be
located within the dedicated right-of-way, with a parkway of a minimum of two
feet and shall extend along all street frontage. This shall include the side of
corner lots and block ends; provided however, that where it is impractical to
provide such sidewalks on the side lot lines abutting major thoroughfares or
drainage ditches, then in those instances sidewalks are not required. The
builder shall install putin sidewalks at the time of building construction.
Additionally, the developer of record shall be responsible for the completion of
sidewalks adjacent to any open space or common area at the time of the
construction of street improvements.

(1) Curbs. Curbs at intersections and mid-block crossings shall be designed
and constructed to provide a ramp for wheelchairs and/or bicycles in




accordance with the American Disabilities Act (ADA) as set forth in city
standards.

(1962 Code, § 12-4-2; Ord. 95018, passed 8-28-95; Ord. 98025, passed 11-9-
98; Ord. 2013-07, passed 2-25-2013).

§ 9-10-1. - Construction of Sidewalks.

(A) It shall be unlawful for any person to construct or lay down cement
sidewalks or cement curbs within the city without first advising the .C_lty Engineer
of his intention to do so, and all cement sidewalks and cement curbs shall be
laid down and constructed under the supervrsron and d|rect|on of the@
Engrneer ; i

|
the-Secretary.

(B) Upon the application of any person to lay down or construct cement
sidewalks or cement curbs, it shall be the duty of the Cityl Engineer to view the
premises where same is proposed to be laid, and furnish the person with the
lines upon which same shall be laid and the levels thereof, the lines and levels

Exceptions: If no sidewalks exist in an area (such as an entire established
?neiqhborhood), then sidewalk construction is not required; however, if future
growth within an area is possible, then sidewalk construction is required. Also]
if sidewalk construction won't fit within the existing right-of-way, then sidewalk
construction is not required. In all cases, exceptions/waivers will be granted
only by approval of the City of Kingsville Director of Planning.

(1962 Code, § 9-1-1)
Cross reference— Penalty, see § 1-1-99.

§9-1\0-2. Erection of Poles.

(A) It shall be unlawful for any person to put down, erect or construct any
telegraph, telephone or electric light poles or wires without first advising the Cityl
Engineer of his intention to do so, and the pales poles and wires shall be
erected and constructed within an approved alignment-se-as-to-cenform-to-the

StractMignment hiap.
(B) Whenever any person shall desire to lay down, erect or construct any

telegraph poles telephone pales poles or electricial light lines, it shall be the
duty of the __ty Engrneer to view the premrses where the poles or I|nes are _

proposed




(1962 Code, § 9-1-2)

Cross reference— Penalty, see § 1-1-99.

§9-10-3. - Repair of Sidewalks, Ramps and/or Curbs Required.

(A)The owners of lots, or part of lots, blocks or other undivided parcels of land
in this city, having sidewalks] ramps] and/or curbs constructed adjacent thereto
shall be and they are hereby required to keep the sidewalks_ramps] and/or
curbs in good repair.

(B) Whenever any sidewalks_ramps] and/or curb adjacent to any lot, block, or
part of same, or along any undivided parcel of land in this city shall become out
of repair, or when any sidewalks|_ramps shall be in any way obstructed so as to
interrupt the free passage over the same, the City Manager, or his
representatives, shall notify the person owning or controlliing the property
fronting thereon to repair the same or to remove the obstruction, and it shall be
the duty of the person to comply with the notification at once, and on failing or
refusing to comply therewith, he shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor; and
each day the sidewalks_ramps] and or curb remains unrepaired, after the
notification and failure or refusal to comply therewith, shall constitute a separate
offense.

(1962 Code, § 9-1-3)
Cross reference— Penalty, see_§ 1-1-99.

§9-10-4. Restricted Construction; Alteration; Sidewalks‘, Ramgs} and
Driveways Required.

(A) From and after the effective date of this article, no person, firm or
corporation shall construct, reconstruct, alter, repair or replace any
improvements on property located in Class "C" Apartment, Class "L" Local
Retail, Class "A" Business, Class "B" Business, Class "T" Trailer Park Districts
without providing for sidewalks and driveways, no building permit shall be
issued by the city for such improvements until a site or construction plet plan
showing sidewalks_ramps, and driveways have been approved by the City
Engineer.

(B) Driveways, ramps, and sidewalks required herein shall be constructed
according to the requirements as set forth in_§ 9-10-22 of this article.

(C) Existing driveways that exceed the maximum width, that front on streets
that have curb and gutter, shall reduce the excess width by the removal of
driveway section and the installation of curb and gutter section. Existing
driveways that exceed the maximum width, that front on streets that do not
have curb and gutter, shall reduce the excess width by the removal of driveway
section and the installation of barricade, concrete island or curb, if needed. In




addition, concrete sidewalks shall be provided along the property fronting all
public roadways or public right-of-way, including the side of all corner lots.
However, in certain cases where the property is zoned for business and the
property fronting a public roadway is used solely as a parking lot, and the
parking lot is asphalt paved to city specifications, the requirement for a
sidewalk may be waived by the City Commission provided that a protected and
clearly delineated sidewalk path area is provided for pedestrian traffic.

(D) The applicable sections of the latest edition of the Texas Highway
Department "Regulations For Access Driveway to State Highways" shall be
used as a guide by the City Engineer in establishing sidewalks and driveways
required hereby.

Exceptions: If no sidewalks exist in an area (such as an entire established
neighborhood), then sidewalk construction is not required: however, if future
growth within an area is possible, then sidewalk construction is required. Also]
if sidewalk construction won't fit within the existing right-of-way. then sidewalk
construction is not required. In all cases, exceptions/waivers will be granted
only by approval of the City of Kingsville Director of Planning.

(E) It shall be the duty of the City Engineer to review all site or construction
plans for the compliance of sidewalks|_ramps] and driveways required by the
city.

(F) Existing property that does not comply with this subarticle shall be
considered as nonconforming, and shall be brought up to the standards of this
subarticle at the time a building permit is requested.

(1962 Code, § 9-1-4; Ord. 77-5, passed 2-7-77)
Cross reference— Penalty, see § 1-1-99.

§9-10-5. Obstructions to Streets, Ramps, and Sidewalks.

It shall be unlawful for any person to obstruct any street, alley or public place
within the limits of the city, by placing thereon any lumber, building material,
dirt, trash, trees, posts, rubbish, furniture, white goods, yard debris, or any other
noxious material. It shall be the responsibility of the property owner to mow and
clean the alley and street rights-of-ways (ROW) adjacent to their property in
accordance with this and all other city ordinances. It shall further be unlawful to
dig or excavate upon any of the streets, alleys or public places of the city any
hole, trench, ditch, or other excavation without first notifying the City Engineer
of the place where the work is to be done and the kind and character thereof,
and obtaining permission in writing from the City Engineer to do so. No
permission shall be given for any work of this character except upon condition
that same shall be properly safeguarded during the day by either watchmen or
signals, and at night by lanterns in such a manner as to prevent anyone falling
or stumbling into such hole, ditch or excavation, or driving therein.




(1962 Code, § 9-3-1; Ord. 99023, passed 9-13-99; Ord. 99031, passed 10-25-
99; Ord. 2001-02, passed 1-22-01; Ord. 2002-05, passed 1-28-02; Ord. 2004-
26, passed 9-13-04)

Cross reference— Penalty, see § 1-1-99.

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed
to the extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or
provision of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a
court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph,
subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent
of this City Commission that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word
or provision hereof be given full force and effect for its purpose.

V.
THAT this Ordinance shall be codified and become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.
INTRODUCED on this the _24th _ day of June, 2024.
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 8th day of July, 2024.

Effective Date:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




AGENDA ITEM #10




AGENDA ITEM #11




City of Kingsville
Purchasing Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Charlie Sosa, Purchasing Manager
DATE: June 20, 2024

SUBJECT:  Authorize the Sale of Real Estate

Summary:
This item authorizes the sale of real property located at 400 E. Caesar (Old Hospital
Storage) owned by the City of Kingsville.

Background:
Staff was authorized the sale of property located at the 400 E Caesar, Legal Description,
(9% Block 24, lots All, (South half of Closed Ragland St.) (Old Hospital Storage).

Financial Impact:
This item has no financial impact until the property is sold.

Recommendation:

It is recommended the City Commission approve to place the property for sale located at
400 E. Caesar (9t Block 24, lots All, and South half of Closed Ragland St. (Old Hospital
Storage) owned by the City of Kingsville.




6/20/24, 9:40 AM

about:blank

N Property Detalls

5 Account

Property ID:

;Type
;NProperty Use |
Q.Locatlon .
'S|tus Address
inap ID

Legal Descrlptlon

AAbstract/Subdlwsmn
EWNelghborhood
%Owner

jﬂOwner ID | B
;Name B
?Agent

E;”Malllng Address

% Ownershlp

Exemptlons

Real Zonlng 02

21 247 Geographlc ID 101 002401 0001 92 ‘

400 E CAESAR BLK TX
C1 Mapsco

9TH 'BLOCK 24 LOT ALL, (3/2 CLOSED RAGLAND ST) (OLD HOSPITAL
; STORAGE) (E X E M P T)

; SO1 0- 9TH

65375

HOME RULE MUNICIPAL CORP

400 W KING AVE

| KINGSVILLE, TX 78363

: 100 O%

’ EX-XV - Other Exemptions (including public property, religious organizations,
_charitable organizations, and other property not reported elsewhere)

For privacy reasons not all exemptions are shown online.

M Property Values

Improvement Homesﬂe Value $0 ( +)

h Improvement Non- HomeSIte Value | %0 (+)

Land Homesﬂe Value

$0 (+)

Land Non-Homesite Value: $50 800 (+)

about:blank

12




6/20/24 9 40 AM

Agrlcultural Market Valuatlon:

Market Value

| Agrlcultural Value Loss 9

Appralsed Value

Homestead Cap Loss 9

Assessed Value '

Ag Use Value

about:blank

”$5o 800( )
$O( )

| h$5o 800( )
$0().
 $50,800
$0

VALUES DISPLAYED ARE 2023 CERTIFIED VAL

District to verify all information for accuracy.

UES.

Information provided for research purposes only. Legal descriptions and acreage amounts are for appraisal district
use only and should be verified prior to using for legal purpose and or documents. Please contact the Appraisal

M Property Taxing Jurisdiction

Owner CITY OF KINGSVILLE %Ownershlp 100. O%

. Entlty Descrlptlon

‘GKL KLEBERG COUNTY
SKI KINGSVILLE 1.8.D.

'WST  SOUTH TEXAS WATER
‘  AUTHORITY

Total Tax Rate: 3.012644
Estimated Taxes With Exemptions: $0.00

Estimated Taxes Without Exemptions: $1,530.42

about:blank

Tax Rate

0760000
e s
e
: ;'0 070374

Market .
Value

$50,800

$50,800
$50,800
$50,800

Taxable Estimated
Value Tax

P ———
- e
T

2/2




RESOLUTION #2024-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PROCEED WITH PLACING FOR SALE
THE CITY’S 3.030 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF THE 400
BLOCK OF EAST CAESAR AVE. (9TH, BLOCK 24, LOT ALL, S/2 CLOSED
RAGLAND ST.), ALSO KNOWN AS OLD HOSPITAL SITE, IN KINGSVILLE, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville owns 3.030 acres of land on the north side of the 400
Block of East Caesar Ave. at 9", Block 24, Lots All and S/2 closed Ragland St., also
known as the Old Hospital site, in Kingsville, Texas;

WHEREAS, the land is undeveloped and the City has no future plans for the land;

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville finds it in the best interest of
the citizens of Kingsville that the 3.030 acres of city-owned land on the north side of the
400 Block of East Caesar Ave. at 9", Block 24, Lots All and S/2 closed Ragland St.,
also known as the OIld Hospital site, in Kingsville, Texas, be placed for sale as
authorized by the Texas Local Government Code; and

WHEREAS, the City believes that placing the land for sale would place the property
back on the tax roll and may allow for future development of the property; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code, real property owned by the
City can be sold via public auction, sealed bids, or through a broker, unless an
exception is met;

WHEREAS, the City finds the property does not meet any of the exceptions to the
bidding requirement as set out in Texas Local Government Code Section 272.001; and,
as the City is a home-rule city, staff recommends the property be sold via a broker as
allowed by Texas Local Government Code Section 253.014 with the best offer coming
back before the Commission for approval of the sale;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:

THAT the City Commission of the City of Kingsville authorizes staff to proceed with
placing for sale via a broker in compliance with the Texas Local Government Code the
City’s 3.030 acres of city-owned land on the north side of the 400 Block of East Caesar
Ave. at 9™, Block 24, Lots All and S/2 closed Ragland St., also known as the Oid
Hospital site, in Kingsville, Texas.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are repealed to
the extent of such conflict only.

w




THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission the 24th day of
June, 2024.

- Sam Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




AGENDA ITEM #12




